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ON THE COVER: On October 13, 2015 the voters of Norman approved a one-half percent
(1/2%), fifteen-year sales tax increase to fund quality of life improvement projects throughout Nor-
man. The NORMAN FORWARD citizen initiative passed with over a 72% approval rate and is
funding projects long anticipated in the City’s Parks and Recreation Master Plan, Library Master
Plan and Transportation Master Plan. Over $195 million in capital projects are envisioned to be
built through the NORMAN FORWARD program.

One of the major NORMAN FORWARD projects (budgeted at $6 million) is the construction of a
new regional park in northwest Norman, “Ruby Grant Park”. Ruby Grant was a long time educator
in the central Oklahoma community. Her estate bequeathed her family’s quarter-section homestead
of farmland (approximately 160 acres), in a rapidly-developing section of Norman along Interstate
35, to the University of Oklahoma (OU). Ruby Grant’s requirement for the bequest was that the land
be sold and the proceeds used for programs at the University, and the land remain largely undevel-
oped and used for a public park.

In 2006, the City of Norman purchased the Ruby Grant Family Homestead from the OU Foundation
and developed a Master Plan for the development of the Ruby Grant Park into a “passive” park,
maintaining the urban wilderness nature of the area while providing recreational opportunities for the
public. The Park will contain major walking and jogging trail systems, competitive cross-country
and disc golf courses, and the City’s first inclusive playground facilities for differently-abled users.
There will also be a public art installation, picnic facilities, restrooms and practice fields for youth
football and soccer. Most important, however, is that the Park will uphold Ruby Grant’s wish that
her family’s homestead benefit OU and be used as an open, nature preserve in the middle of urban
Norman. The first phase of the development of Ruby Grant Park is nearing completion, funded by
the NORMAN FORWARD Sales Tax.

PHOTOS PROVIDED BY THE NORMAN PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT
And BOLD MULTIMEDIA
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December 7, 2020

Citizens of the City of Norman, Oklahoma
Honorable Mayor and City Council

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish, within six months of the
close of each fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published
to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated
benefits of providing the control, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

BKD, LLP has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Norman (“City”) financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. The independent auditors’ report is located at the
front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this Letter of Transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it. We are pleased to report that the financial position of the City of Norman and its
component units is strong.

Profile of the Government

An elected Mayor and eight-member Council govern the City of Norman. Daily operations of the
City are administered by a City Manager appointed by majority vote of the City Council.

The Basic Financial Statements of the City include all governmental and business-type activities,
organizations and functions, including those legally separate organizations for which the City is
financially accountable as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).

i
Building an Inclusive Community



The City provides a full range of municipal government services to over 122,000 residents and
numerous visitors annually. Municipal services provided include: traffic control; water production
and distribution; public transportation and paratransit services; stormwater management and flood
control; wastewater collection and treatment (water reclamation); solid waste collection and
disposal; emergency response services; city code enforcement; crime prevention, enforcement and
adjudication; construction and maintenance of streets and bridges; maintenance of park land; and
public recreational facilities.

The City does not operate hospitals or schools. Special districts and governmental entities with
independent authority administer the public hospital, public schools and the university within the
City. The City provides School Resource Police Officers through a cost-sharing agreement with
the Norman Public Schools.

The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than ten days before the close of the
fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and
control. The budget is prepared by fund, department and category (e.g., salary and benefits).
Department managers may transfer resources within their department as they see fit. Transfers
between departments, however, need special approval from the City Manager. City Council
approval is needed for transfers between funds or between capital projects.

Local Economy; Relevant Financial Policies

The City of Norman is located in the geographic center of Oklahoma and is within the Oklahoma
City metropolitan area. Norman’s high quality of life is sought by people of all ages and walks of
life, and is demonstrated by population growth in recent years. The University of Oklahoma,
National Severe Storms Laboratory and National Weather Service, Hitachi Computer Products,
U.S. Postal Service Technical Center, Immuno Mycologics Incorporated, SYSCO Food Services,
Avara Pharmaceutical Technologies, and Johnson Controls Unitary Products Group are some of
the leading institutions and businesses located in Norman. Several of these businesses have
recently expanded, helping to sustain the health of the local economy for years to come.

One of the best indicators of the economic condition of the City is the evaluation of trends in some
key factors. Sales and use taxes and franchise fees collectively represent 74% of the City’s total
General Fund revenue. Sales tax receipts increase in proportion to the level of retail sales and
therefore provide a good indication of the economic condition of the community. Use taxes are
collected at the same rate as sales tax on sales of goods outside of the state of Oklahoma for use
within Norman, such as on-line sales. Reflecting changes in consumer behavior to on-line
purchasing, use tax is an increasing source of revenue, but is relatively difficult to enforce.

Overall, sales tax collections decreased by 0.8% from FYE 2019 levels. Sales tax had been
increasing at approximately two percent (2%) above the prior year through the third quarter of
fiscal year 2019-2020, before the impact of the economic shutdown that was mandated to slow the
spread of the Novel Coronavirus of 2019 (COVID-19) was imposed by the Governor of Oklahoma
and the Mayor of Norman. The long-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is unknown at the
close of the fiscal year. Collections from the City’s franchise fees (charges to private electric,
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natural gas and cable companies to operate within the City’s rights-of-way), which are heavily
depended on weather patterns, decreased 1.4% from FYE 2019 levels.

Since sales and use taxes and building permit revenues are a primary source of the City’s general
governmental revenue, are by nature volatile, and because Norman is subject to extreme weather
conditions which can necessitate significant unexpected expenditures during the course of the
budget year, the City must budget conservatively and maintain sufficient fund balances to absorb
any shortfalls that may occur. As a result, prudent reserve policies have been codified in a Net
Revenue Stabilization (“Rainy Day”) Fund Ordinance. The Ordinance requires a budgetary fund
balance of at least three percent (3%) of budgeted expenditures in the General Fund; a General
Fund “Emergency Reserve” appropriation of 1%; and a minimum of 4% of General Fund
expenditures to be maintained in a separate “Rainy Day” Fund (a minimum total of 8 percent of
General Fund expenditures are mandated to be held in reserve fund balances or appropriations).
The Ordinance sets a Targeted Rainy Day Fund balance of 5% of General Fund expenditures (the
total Targeted Reserve Fund Balance is 9% of General Fund expenditures).

Fund balance in the Net Revenue Stabilization Fund can only be appropriated for expenditure in
case of federally-declared disasters or extraordinary capital expense requirements in the General
Fund, or if the General Fund balance falls below one percent. The Ordinance requires that the
Net Revenue Stabilization Fund balance be built or rebuilt to its minimum level within three years
of the establishment of the Fund, or within three years of any expenditure of Rainy Day Fund
balances. The City of Norman’s Rainy Day Fund is being maintained at its Targeted level as of
June 30, 2020.
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The City also targets a fund balance level in other operating funds of at least eight percent (8%) of
budgeted expenditures to protect citizen/customer service delivery from unexpected revenue
shortfalls or cost overruns. The City also seeks to set utility rates within utility enterprise funds at
a level to meet average net income and reserve requirements over a five-year period without the
need for interim adjustments. The City’s unique Charter requirement that utility rate increases
must be approved by a majority vote of the people of Norman makes this policy more difficult to
achieve. The voters of Norman have not approved a water rate increase since 2015; wastewater,
since 2013; and sanitation, since 2011. Norman is also one of the few cities of its size that does
not have a stormwater utility fee to pay for the costs of federally-mandated pollutant discharge
programs. Norman’s all-in utility rates are among the lowest in the region:

Long-term Financial Planning

The City provides very competitive employee benefit packages, particularly for health insurance
and retirement (information on employee benefits is given in the Notes to Financial Statements
Section). Much of the City’s long-term financial planning efforts in the general governmental
service areas relate to controlling the rate of growth in these employee costs. The City continues
to provide adequate service levels, but the ability to maintain these service levels without new
revenue sources to support increased staffing will become doubtful. The Council continues to
consider alternative revenue sources.

The financial status of the City’s utility enterprise funds is driven by major capital expenditures.
The Council, acting as Trustees of the Norman Utilities Authority, has approved major expansion
and improvements to the Norman Water Treatment Plant and expansion of the City’s groundwater
supplies. These major water facility improvements are the first major phase of the program laid
out in the NUA’s Strategic Water Supply Plan, which was approved in 2014.
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Major Initiatives

The citizens of Norman approved an earmarked, temporary (15-year term) sales tax of one-half
percent (1/2%) to fund major quality of life improvements in October, 2015; the NORMAN
FORWARD initiative. The City’s Norman Municipal Authority issued Tax Revenue Notes to
finance the major facilities included in the Norman Forward program, and major facilities have
been completed or are under construction, including the new Westwood Family Aquatic Center;
the new Norman Public Library, East Branch; the expanded Westwood Tennis Center; the Griffin
Park Soccer Complex; the new Norman Public Library, Central Branch; and community and
neighborhood park improvement city-wide. Future projects that are in preliminary phases include
the reconstructed Reaves Park Youth Softball/Baseball Complex; a new Adult Football/Softball
Complex; extension of James Garner Boulevard; construction of a new Indoor Aquatics Complex;
a new Indoor Multi-Sport Facility; a potential new Senior Citizen’s Center; and supporting traffic
and roadway improvements.

The voters of Norman also approved a major general obligation bond package for road and
drainage improvements throughout Norman.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(“CAFR”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This
report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
program requirements, and we will submit it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
certification.

Preparation of a CAFR is a complex task and one that requires considerable expertise and
experience. More important, the ongoing maintenance and reporting of the City’s financial
condition at the level to which Norman has been accustomed requires professionalism and
dedication far beyond what could be expected from a paycheck. The City is fortunate to have a
very talented accounting staff willing to undertake these magnanimous efforts year after year. It
is our pleasure to express sincere thanks to the accounting staff of the City. Chief Accountant
Clint Mercer, CPA, CPFO, and Municipal Accountant Debbie Whitaker deserve particular
recognition for their efforts in preparing representative financial statements. We would also like
to thank BKD, LLP, independent auditors of the City, for their guidance and technical assistance.

Finally, we would like to express our gratitude and appreciation to the members of the Norman
City Council and the Council’s Finance and Audit Committee for your policy guidance which is
contained in this document. As the governing body, your commitment to ensure accurate and
reliable financial accounting and reporting systems, and to provide adequate staffing levels to
ensure them, establishes an environment influencing all other decisions that are made. We are



proud to convey the City Council’s commitment to excellence to our citizens and all readers of the
FYE 2020 CAFR.

Respectfully submitted,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Norman, Oklahoma
Norman, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Norman,
Oklahoma (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Norman, Oklahoma
Page 2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund,and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, pension, and other postemployment benefit information,
as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information, consisting of
combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules and the introductory and statistical sections,
as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Norman, Oklahoma
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

BED L

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
December 7, 2020



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Norman (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-x of this
report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at
the close of the most recent fiscal year by $717,530,801 (net position).

e The City’s total net position increased by $14,806,623.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $163,284,042, a decrease of $7,879,675 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
93.4% or $152,447,536 was nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned for specific purposes.
Approximately 6.6% or $10,836,506 was unassigned at fiscal year end.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $10,836,506 or
14% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City’s total debt decreased by $11,206,699 (4.5 percent) during the current fiscal year. Key factors
of this change was a draw of $6,381,355 on the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, Series 2017 loan.
Also, the City made its normally scheduled payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themsclves. A brief description of
the basic financial statements follows.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all the City’s assets, deferred outflow of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflow of resources with the difference between the assets plus deferred outflows of
resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, planning, city controller,
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parks and recreation, public works, public service and public safety. The business-type activities of the
City include the Norman Municipal Authority (the “NMA”™), the Norman Utilities Authority (the “NUA™)
and the Norman Economic Development Authority (the “NEDA™). The NMA operates Westwood Park
and the City’s sanitation services. Westwood Park includes golf, tennis and swimming facilities. The
NUA operates the City’s water and wastewater services. The NEDA includes financing and operating
economic development activities for the City.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17-18 of this report.

Fund financial statements - A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. A brief description of these funds follows.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, public safety sales tax fund, debt service fund, capital
projects fund and NORMAN FORWARD fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other eight governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Proprietary funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for NMA and NUA activities, which are both presented as major
proprietary funds. The components of these funds are presented in additional detail in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report. The City uses one other type of proprietary fund, an internal
service fund to account for its retained risks. These services predominantly benefit governmental rather
than business-type functions and have been included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.



Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.

Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 27-76 of this report.

Other information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees and budgetary
comparison schedules for the general fund and public safety sales tax fund. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 77-90 of this report. Also, this report presents certain other
supplementary information such as combining financial information for non-major governmental funds,
budgetary comparison schedules for non-major governmental funds and combining financial statements for
enterprise funds and fiduciary funds. Other supplementary information can be found on pages 91-114 of
this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by
$717,530,801 at the close of the most recent fiscal vear.



Net Position

As of June 30
Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets  § 179,093,564 § 187,268,219 § 83,606,492 $ 92,327,776 $ 262,700,056 § 279,595,995
Capital assets, net 473,904,142 466,115,901 293,905,574 285,438,937 767,809,716 751,554,838
Noncurrent assets 241,484 2,001,892 6,745,712 547,721 6,987,196 2,549,613

Total assets 653,239,190 655,386,012 384,257,778 378,314,434 1,037,496,968 1,033,700,446
Deferred outflows 15,254,348 17,283,562 603,901 716,818 15,858,249 18,000,380

Total asscts & deferred
outflows 668,493,538 672,669,574 384,861,679 379,031,252 1,053,355,217 1,051,700,826
Long-term liabilities 198,293,813 221,678,339 78,291,136 80,691,857 276,584,949 302,370,196
Other liabilities 32,238,228 25,470,407 14,779,121 14,006,385 47,017,349 39,476,792

Total liabilities 230,532,041 247,148,746 93,070,257 94,698,242 323,602,298 341,846,988
Deferred inflows 12,219,118 7,129,660 - - 12,219,118 7,129,660

Total liabilities &
deferred inflows 242,751,159 254,278,406 93,070,257 94,698,242 335,821,416 348,976,648
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets 404,269,078 343,501,122 220,190,180 210,610,975 624,459,258 554,112,097
Restricted 55,892,634 104,620,414 7,349,204 10,621,197 63,241,838 115,241,611
Unrestricted (34,422,332) (29,730,368) 64,252,037 63,100,838 29,829,705 33,370,470

Total net position $ 425,739,380 $ 418391,168 $ 291,791,421 $ 284,333,010 § 717,530,801 § 702,724,178

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (87 percent) reflect its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery and equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position (9 percent) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of net position is unrestricted.

There was an increase of $7.5 million in the net position reported in connection with the City’s business-
type activities. This increase was due to several factors. See below for more information.

The governmental net position increased by $7.3 million during the current fiscal year. This increase was
due to several factors. See below for more information.



Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants &

contributions
Capital grants &
contributions

General revenues:
Sales and excise taxes
Franchise taxes
Property taxes
Use taxes
Other taxes
[nvestiment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Planning
City controller
Parks and recreation
Public works
Public service
Public safety
Interest on long-term debt
Westwood park
Water
Wastewater
Sanitation

Total expenses

Change in net position before
transters
Transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

Change in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30

Gavernmental activities Business-type activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
8,924,887 § 7.174,820 % 55,077,914 § 52,944,835 % 64,002,801 % 60,119,655
10,767,930 10,388,169 - - 10,767,930 10,388,169
6,333,788 30,404,175 2,786,305 2,569,510 9,120,093 32,973,685
75,811,863 74,419,538 1,283,126 1,236,361 77,094,989 75,655,899
6,531,339 6,625,971 - - 6,531,339 6,625,971
12,062,899 11,395,748 - - 12,062,899 11,395,748
9,017,696 7,196,831 - - 9,017,696 7,196,831
2,510,256 2,977,687 - - 2,510,256 2,977,687
2,489,875 3,198,922 1,974,631 3,046,261 4,464,506 6,245,213
2,450,934 3,762,651 52,054 297,195 2,502,988 4,059,846
136,901,467 157,544,512 61,174,030 60,094,192 198,075,497 217,638,704
17,378,592 13,738,006 - - 17,378,592 13,738,006
3,228,429 3,367,244 - - 3,228,429 3,367,244
2,207,900 2,093,411 - - 2,207,900 2,093,411
8,539,967 7,509,979 - - 8,539,967 7,509,979
39,467,992 25,614,539 - - 39,467,992 25,614,539
1,995,214 4,118,076 - - 1,995,214 4,118,076
53,536,220 45,140,356 - - 53,536,220 45,140,356
4,248.252 4,137,314 - - 4,248,252 4,137,314
- - 2,124,443 2,026,461 2,124,443 2,026,461
- - 18,435,089 16,505,700 18,435,089 16,505,700
- - 18,627,217 16,628,468 18,627,217 16,628,468
- - 13,479,559 13,494,028 13,479,559 13,494,028
130,602,566 105,718,925 52,666,308 48,654,657 183,268,874 154,373,582
6,298,901 51,825,587 8,507,722 11,439,535 14,806,623 63,265,122
1,049,311 1,030,049 (1,049,311) (1,030,049) - -
7,348,212 32,855,636 7,458,411 10,409,486 14,806,623 63,265,122
418,391,168 365,535,532 284,333,010 273,923,524 702,724,178 639,459,056
425,739,380 § 418,391,168 $§ 291,791.421 § 284333,010 % 717,530,801 & 702,724,178

Governmental activities ~Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $7.3 million. In the
prior year, governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $52.9 million. Key elements of this

change are as follows:

e Sales tax revenue within the governmental activities (the City’s primary fund source) increased by

$1,392,325 or 1.9% over the prior fiscal year. However, a new 1/ 8% of a cent sales tax to fund transit

activities was effective April 1, 2020. Excluding this new tax, sales tax revenue within the

governmental activities increased by $766,102 or 1% over the prior fiscal year. The City and State’s
economy has been fairly stable in the last fiscal year as energy prices have been flat.



e Use tax revenue has increased $1,820,865 or 25.3% over the prior fiscal year. The City continues to
benefit from agreements states have made with on-line retailers such as Amazon to pay use tax.

e Capital grants and contributions decreased $24,070,387 or 79% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this
figure is donated infrastructure (i.e., roads) from both developers and joint projects with the State of
Oklahoma. Last year a large joint project was finished whereby approximately $14.7 million was
donated to the City.

e Investment earnings decreased $709,047 or 22% from the prior year. Overall, interest rates were lower
in the current fiscal year due to pandemic effects.

o Public works expenses increased $13,853,453 or 54% from the prior year. Most of this increase was
due to street maintenance projects.

e Public safety expenses increased $8,395,864 or 18.6% from the prior year. Most of this increase was
due to increases in Fire Suppression and Patrol salary and benefits.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

$60,000,000
$58,000,000 -
$56,000,000

$54,000,000 Bprogram revenues Dexpenses
$52,000,000 -
$50,000,000 -
$48,000,000 -
$46,000,000 -
$44,000,000 -
$42,000,000 -
$40,000,000 -
$38,000,000 -
$36,000,000 -
$34,000,000
$32,000,000 -
$30,000,000 -
$28,000,000 -
$26,000,000 -
$24,000,000 -
$22,000,000 -
$20,000,000 -
$18,000,000 -
$16,000,000 -
$14,000,000 -
$12,000,000 -
$10,000,000 -
$8,000,000 -
$6,000,000 -
$4,000,000 -

$2,000,000 - - | | I_I e

Although governmental expenses exceed program revenue, most governmental activities are financed
through general revenues such as taxes.



Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

sales taxes

operating grants and
contributions
8%

investment earnings
2%

capital grantsan
contributions
5%

miscellaneous
2%

charges for service

6%

other taxes
22%

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $7.5 million. In the
prior year, business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $10.4 million. Key elements of this

change are as follows:

Charges for services increased $2,133,079 or 4% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this increase was
due to increased water sales.
Investment earnings decreased $1,071,660 or 35.2% from the prior fiscal year. Overall, interest rates
were lower in the current fiscal year due to the pandemic.
Water expenses increased $1,929,389 or 12% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this increase was due
to the completion of several maintenance water projects in the current fiscal year.
Wastewater expenses increased 1,998,749 or 12% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this increase was
due to an increase in depreciation due to completion of a large treatment plant project being completed
in the prior fiscal year and receiving depreciation in the current fiscal year.

-10 -



Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

$30,000,000

$29,000,000
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities
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90%
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds — The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $163,284,042, a decrease of $7,879,675 from the prior year. Approximately 7 percent of this
total amount ($10,836,506) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, committed or
assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending.

-12 -



The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $10,836,506 while total fund balance reached $17,589,318. Asa
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14 percent of total
General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 23 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased by $2,002,417 during the current fiscal year
compared to an increase of $685,899 in the previous year. Key factors in the current year change are as
follows:

Sales tax revenues within the General Fund increased $972,807 or 2.4% from the prior fiscal year.

e Use tax revenues within the General Fund increased $1,383,652 or 26% from the prior fiscal year,

e Net transfers in and out within the General Fund decreased $3,289,731 or 65.8% from the prior fiscal
year. The General Fund transferred a net amount of $2,880,788 to the Transportation and Parking
Fund to cover initial startup costs of the public transportation system.

The Public Safety Sales Tax Fund has a total fund balance of $10,950,723 all of which is restricted for
public safety activities. The net decrease in fund balance during the current year was $907,173. A portion
of this decrease was due to spending of note proceeds for the Emergency Communications System Project
($396,209) received in prior years.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $7,200,737 all of which is restricted for the payment of
debt service. The net decrease in the fund balance during the current year was $410,683 due to normally
scheduled payments.

The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $78,836,761. The net decrease in fund balance
during the current year was $4,105,031. This net decrease was due to the spending down of general
obligation bond monies received in previous years.

The NORMAN FORWARD Fund has a total fund balance of $40,504,935. The net decrease in fund
balance during the current year was $4,560,116. This net decrease was due to spending down of previous
note monies received in the previous year.

Proprietary funds — The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail,

Unrestricted net position of the NMA and NUA funds were $15,463,577 and $48,788,460 respectively.
The total growth in net position for these funds was $2,330,426 and $5,127,985, respectively. Other factors

concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year there was a $1,561,667 increase in appropriations between the original and final amended
budget. Following are the main components of the increase:
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$1,122,649 in decreases to the general government budget. City Council decreased $1,154,134 mostly
due to transfer of $1,135,500 to the Transit and Parking Fund to cover startup costs of assuming the
public transportation system.

$1,941,191 in increases to the public safety budget. Criminal Investigations received $596,004 in
increases with $549,620 for salary and benefits. Fire Suppression received $498,955 in increases with
$290,491 relating to rollover encumbrances for equipment and $154,089 for salary and benefits.

The City has an adopted reserve policy established by ordinance. The ordinance establishes that the
General Fund will have an unappropriated reserve of at least three percent (3%) of annually budgeted
expenditures, in addition to an appropriated emergency reserve of one percent (1%) of annually budgeted
expenditures. In addition, the ordinance establishes the Net Revenue Stabilization Fund (i.e., “Rainy Day
Fund™) which has a targeted balance of not less than four percent (4%) but not more than seven percent
(7%) of annually budgeted General Fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2020 the Rainy Day Fund had a
balance of $3,889,176 which represents 5.1% of General Fund expenditures.

The net difference between the General Fund amended budget and actual amounts received/expended can
be briefly summarized as follows:

General Fund revenues were below expectations by $6,828,744.

O

O

O

Q

Q

Sales taxes were below expectations by $4,641,974.

Use taxes were above expectations by $1,493,093.

Franchise fees were below expectations by $1,250,459, mainly within the electric, gas and basic
cable franchises.

Charges for services were below expectations by $415,734, the most significant being within the
recreation fees category due to pandemic effects.

Other revenue was below expectations by $1,608,421, mainly within the cost allocations category
primarily due to reduced changes for fleet fuel.

General Fund expenditures and encumbrances were below expectations by $7,336,159.

o]

O

O

O

O

City Council expenditures were $773,487 below expectation due to lack of expense of all the 1%
reserve.

Street Maintenance expenditures were $908,845 below expectation due to savings within salary
and beneifts.

Fire Suppression expenditures were $636,899 below expectation due to payment of prior year
encumbrances in the current year that were expensed in prior years as encumbrances.

Stormwater Drainage expenditures were $552,875 below expectations due to savings within the
salary and benefits,

Fleet Fuel and Parts expenditures were $428,373 below expectations due to savings within outside
fuel inventory.

Net General Fund transfers were $72,896 more than expected.

The City closed the year with a fund balance that was higher than what was budgeted by $580,311.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The City’s gross investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2020, amounted to $767,809,716 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, roads,
highways and bridges. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was 2.2% (1.7% increase for governmental activities and a 3% increase for business-type activities).

- 14 -



As of June 30

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land $ 68,360,714 § 66,574,164 § 10,417,288 $ 10,417,288 $ 78,778,002 $ 76,991,452
Buildings and
improvements 117,297,148 85,053,321 208,119,409 207,059,657 325,416,557 292,112,978
Machinery and
equipment 69,165,188 62,721,507 213,376,331 211,658,654 282,541,519 274,380,161
Infrastructure 630,844,129 618,527,757 - - 630,844,129 618,527,757
Construction in
progress 46,139,237 69,089,640 59,244,490 39,439,672 105,383,727 108,529,312
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (457,902,274) (435,850,488) (197,251,944) (183,136,334) (655,154,218) (618,986,822)
Total $  473.904,142 $ 466115901 $ 293905574 $ 285438937 § 767,809,716 $ 751,554,838

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The new Central Branch Library was completed at a cost of $34,959,718.

e The 24™ NW Avenue and Tee Street signal and intersection improvement project was completed at a
cost of $1,821,681 of which the State of Oklahoma provided $1,211,280.

e A variety of Norman Forward construction projects were underway; construction in progress related to
Norman Forward projects as of the end of the current fiscal year had reached $9,950,917.

e A variety of street and roadway construction projects were underway; governmental construction in
progress related to public works as of the end of the current fiscal year had reached $15,866,995.

e A variety of water and sewer projects were underway; NUA construction in progress as of the end of
the current fiscal year was $59,095,716.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 4 on page 43-44 of this report.

Long-term debt — At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of
$68,180,848. Of this amount, $67,812,055 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
government. The remainder of the City’s bonded debt represents bonds secured solely by specified
revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds) of $368,793. The City also had notes payable outstanding of
$170,462,648 at the end of the current fiscal year which were secured by capital assets and specified
revenue sources.
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Outstanding Debt

As of June 30

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
General obligation bonds $ 67812055 $ 71,033,501 $ -5 - 3 67,812,055 § 71,033,501
Revenue bonds - - 368,793 535,689 368,793 535,689
Capital leases - - - - - -
Notes payable 86,675,000 92,065,000 83,787,648 86,216,005 170,462,648 178,281,005
Total $ 154,487,055 $ 163,098,501 $ 84,156,441 $ 86,751,694 § 238,643,496 § 249,850,195

The City’s total debt decreased by $11,206,699 (4.5 percent) during the current fiscal year. Key factors of
this change was a draw of $6,381,355 on the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, Series 2017 loan. Also,
the City made its normally scheduled payments.

The City maintained an “Aa2” rating from Moody’s for those general obligation debt issues that are rated
by the service. The NUA maintained an “Aa3” rating from Moody’s for those debt issues that they rate.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 4 on pages 60-67 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the Oklahoma City metropolitan area which includes Norman is currently
7.0 percent, The state’s average unemployment rate was 6.4 percent and the national average rate was
11.1 percent,

o Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

The City’s major source of revenue is sales and use tax revenue, Sales tax and use tax revenue
increased 1.9% and 25.3%, respectively, over the prior year total.

e The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is unknown at this time, however, unemployment changes and
sales tax trends will absolutely be affected in the future.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2021 fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director,
201 West Gray, Building C, Norman, Oklahoma, 73069.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,649,835 3 35,632,207 $ 75,282,042

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 92,837,448 14,190,363 107,027,811

Investments 24,920,037 29,152,944 54,072,981

Restricted investments 2,977,613 - 2,977,613

Receivables:

Taxes 16,463,454 - 16,463,454
Accounts, net of allowance for estimated

uncollectible Business-Type accounts of $1,047,066 812,579 4,146,114 4,958,693
Interest 75,471 126,364 201,835
Other 106,010 - 106,010

Due from Federal Government 1,595,552 - 1,595,552

Internal balances (358,500) 358,500 -

Inventory 14,065 - 14,065

Total current assets 179,093,564 83,606,492 262,700,056
Non-current assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 6,745,712 6,745,712

Net pension asset 241,484 - 241484

Capital assets not subject to depreciation 114,499 951 69,661,778 184,161,729

Capital assets, net 359,404,191 224,243,796 583,647,987

Total non-current assets 474,145,626 300,651,286 774,796,912
Total assets 653,239,190 384,257,778 1,037,496,968
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred resources related to pensions 14,174,273 - 14,174,273
Deferred resources related to OPEB 983,689 - 983,689
Deferred charge on refunding 96,380 603,901 700,287
Total deferred outflows of resources 15,254,348 603,901 15,858,249
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 3,208,044 3,719,441 6,927,485

Payroll payable 2,135,332 465,859 2,601,191

Accrued interest payable 1,215,348 599,078 1,814,426

Retainage payable 1,222,462 1,061,340 2,283,802

Guaranty deposits 7,253,730 1,684,983 8,938,713

Current portion of long-term debt 17,203,312 7,248,420 24,451,732
Total current liabilities 32,238,228 14,779,121 47,017,349

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt and other liabilities 198,293,813 78,291,136 276,584,949
Total non-current liabilities 198,293,813 78,291,136 276,584,949
Total liabilities 230,532,041 93,070,257 323,602,298

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Defcrred resources related to pensions 8,658,491 - 8,658,491

Deferred resources related to OPEB 3,560,627 - 3,560,627
Total deferred inflows of resources 12,219,118 - 12,219,118

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 404,269,078 220,190,180 624,459,258

Restricted for:

Debt service 7,200,737 734,892 7,935,629

Capital improvements 30,164,517 6,614,312 36,778,829

Public safety 11,770,417 - 11,770,417

Public parks and recreation 1,169,232 - 1,169,232

Public service 2,933,867 - 2,933,867

Public works 2,653,864 - 2,653,864

Unrestricted (deficit) (34,422,332) 64,252,037 29,829,705

Total net position $

425,739,380 3

291,791,421

§ 717,530,801

See notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

Other Total
Public Safety Debt Capital Norman Governmental Governmental
General Sales Tax Service Projects Forward Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,652,354 $ - $ - $ 14,902,157 $12,978,215 $ 5,921,666 $ 38,454,392
Investments 3,793,039 - 1,691,023 8,348,247 8,049,363 2,165,010 24,046,682
Receivables:
Taxes 9,872,175 1,879,024 - 2,322,187 1,879,024 511,044 16,463,454
Accounts 470,582 164,321 - 89,184 - 455 724,542
Interest 19,893 81 7,324 - 35,015 9,375 71,688
Other - - - 106,010 - - 106,010
Due from Federal Govnmt 1,175,430 - - 142,379 - 277,743 1,595,552
Due from other funds 735,515 - 44916 118,575 106,809 46,787 1,052,602
Inventory 14,065 - - - - - 14,065
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent: 2,498,901 9,978,349 5,457,474 56,509,420 18,393,304 - 92,837,448
Investments 2977613 - - - - - 2,977,613
Total assets $ 26,209,567 $ 12,021,775 $ 7.200,737 $ 82,538,159 $ 41,441,730 $ 8,932,080 $ 178,344,048
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
other accrued liabilities  $ 739,022 $ 78,734 $ - $ 1,061,369 $ 882,034 $ 276,253 $  3,037.412
Payroll payable 1,777,078 282,176 - 37,201 - 29,007 2,125,462
Due to other funds 685,424 710,142 - - - 25,374 1,420,940
Retainage payable - - - 767,823 54,761 399,878 1,222 462
Guaranty deposits 5,418,725 - - 1,835,005 - - 7,253,730
Total liabilities 8,620,249 1,071,052 - 3,701,398 936,795 730,512 15,060,006
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 14,065 - - - - - 14,065
Restricted - 10,950,723 7,200,737 76,203,750 38,549,121 7,576,657 140,480,988
Committed 3,889,176 - - - - - 3,889,176
Assigned 2,849,571 - - 2,633,011 1,955,814 624,911 8,063,307
Unassigned 10,836,506 - - - - - 10,836,506
Total fund balances 17,589,318 10,950,723 7,200,737 78,836,761 40,504,935 8,201,568 163,284,042
Total liabilities and fund balances
balances $ 26,209,567 $ 12,021,775 $ 7,200,737 $ 82,538,159 $ 41,441,730 $ 8,932,080
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds. : 473,904,142
The net pension asset is not an available resource and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. 241,484

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk management activities to individual funds. The
assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of the internal service funds are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net position. (1,054,136)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension liability (including related deferred outflows/inflows of resources) are
not due and payablc in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (210,636,152)
Net position of governmental activities $ 425,739,380

See notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Other Total
Public Safety Debt Capital Norman Governmental Governmenta
General Sales Tax Service Projects Forward Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 54,437,300 3 10,525,338 $ 9,841,604 $ 17,467,995 $ 10,525,337 $ 1,933,750 $ 104,731,324
Licenses and permits 1,142,125 - - - - - 1,142,125
Intergovernmental revenues 3,245,451 - - 3,376,335 6,021,786
Charges for services 10,973,558 - - - - 72,165 11,045,723
Fines and forfeitures 1,793,609 - - . - - 1,793,609
Investment earnings 148,987 99,894 102,532 1,049,766 742,013 111,030 2,254,222
Other 1,469,932 657,285 - 891,768 52,979 251,896 3,323,860
Total revenues 73,210,962 11,282 517 9.944,136 19,409,529 11,320,329 5,745,176 130,912,649
Expenditures;
Current:
General government 9,566,062 - - 448,451 - - 10,014,513
Planning 3,337,205 - - 56,321 - - 3,393,526
City controller 3,549,717 - - 73,669 - - 3,623,386
Parks and recreation 4,744,075 - - 650,287 738,198 106,920 6,239,480
Public works 14,954,746 58,833 - 9,544,081 - 3,708,421 28,266,081
Public service - - - - - 1,996,015 1,996,015
Public safety 38,497,443 9,740,306 - 76,602 - 323,329 48,637,680
Capital outlay 2,267,878 2,017,857 - 8,083,751 11,048,563 1,103,274 24,521,323
Debt service:
Principal retirement - 1,965,000 3,025,000 1,225,000 2,200,000 - 8,415,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 392,674 1,981,445 90,134 1,923,775 - 4,388,028
Total expenditures 76,917,126 14,174,670 5,006,445 20,248,296 15,910,536 7,237,959 139,495,032
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (3.706,164) (2,892.153) 4,937,691 (838,767) {4,590,207) (1,492,783) (8,582,383)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 8,722,338 1,984,980 - 2,355,246 204,419 5,378,948 18,645,931
Transfers out (7,018,591} - (410,683 (5,621,510) (174,328) (4,718,111) (17,943,223)
Net other financing
sources (uses) 1,703,747 1,984,980 (410,683} (3,266,264) 30,091 660,837 702,708
Net change in fund balances (2,002,417) (907,173) 4,527,008 (4,105,031) (4,560,116) (831,946) (7,879,675)
Fund balances, July 1, 2019 19,591,735 11,857,896 2,673,729 82,941,792 45,065,051 9,033,514 171,163,717

Fund balances, June 30,2020 § 17,589,318 $ 10,950,723 $ 7,200,737 $ 78,836,761 $§ 40,504,935 $ 8,201,568 $ 163,284,042

See notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (7,879,675)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 2,051,082

Contributed capital assets (land, buildings and infrastructure) and other miscellaneous capital
asset transactions recorded in government-wide financial statements but not recorded
in fund level financial statements 5,737,139

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on the net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 8,415,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in the govenmental funds (394,356)

Increase in liability for incurred claims and compensated absences and miscellaneous
expenses in government-wide financial statements (1,035,051)

The cost of pension benefits carned, net of contributions made, are reported as an element

of pension expense in government-wide financial statements. In the fund-level

financial statements only the contributions made are reported as expenditures 1,066,685
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance services to

individual funds. The net loss of the internal service fund is reported
with governmental activities. (612,632)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 7,348,212

See notes to financial statements
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for
estimated uncollectible accounts
Interest
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Payroll payable

Liability for incurred claims

Accrued interest payable

Retainage payable

Guaranty deposits

Revenue bonds payable

Notes payable

Compensated absences
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable, net
Compensated absences
Liability for incurred claims
Revenue bonds payable, net
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilitics
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

See notes to financial statements,

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Norman Norman
Municipal Utilities Internal
Authority Authority Total Service Fund
9,781,139 § 25,851,068 35,632,207 $ 1,195,443
422 855 13,767,509 14,190,364 -
6,069,869 23,083,075 29,152,944 873,355
958,942 3,187,172 4,146,114 88,037
26,289 100,075 126,364 3,783
80,807 277,692 358,499 9,838
17,339,901 66,266,591 83,606,492 2,170,456
230,997 6,514,715 6,745,712 -
17,509,562 276,396,012 293,905,574 -
17,740,559 282,910,727 300,651,286 -
35,080,460 349,177,318 384,257,778 2,170,456
- 603,901 603,901 -
- 603,901 603,901 -
705,731 3,013,710 3,719,441 170,754
243,667 222,192 465,859 9,870
- - - 1,200,000
1,914 597,164 599,078 -
- 1,061,340 1,061,340 -
420,941 1,264,042 1,684,983 -
180,000 - 180,000 -
- 6,955,951 6,955,951 -
41,494 70,977 112,471 3,210
1,593,747 13,185,376 14,779,123 1,383,834
- 76,831,697 76,831,697 -
468,784 801,861 1,270,645 40,758
- - - 1,800,000
188,793 - 188,793 -
657,577 77,633,558 78,291,135 1,840,758
2,251,324 90,818,934 93,070,258 3,224,592
17,134,562 203,055,618 220,190,180 -
230,997 503,895 734,892 -
- 6,614,312 6,614,312 -
15,463,577 48,788,460 64,252,037 (1,054,136)
32,829,136 $ 258,962,285 291,791,421 § (1,054,136)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Operating revenues:

Golf and pool fees

Water service, net

Wastewater service, net

Sanitation services, net

Self-insurance charges:
Charges for services
Risk management administration
Workers' compensation
Unemployment compensation

Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and materials
Services, maintenance and claims
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Excise tax revenue
Investment earnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Miscellaneous income (expense)

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfe

Capital contributions - donated water and

sewer distribution systems
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net capital contributions and transfers

Net income (loss)

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

See notes to financial statements

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Norman Norman
Municipal Utilities Internal
Authority Authority Total Service Fund
$ 1,632,229 § - 8 1,632,229 § -
- 23,448,852 23,448,852 -
- 15,984,512 15,984,512 -
15,095,368 - 15,095,368 -
- - - 13,997,065
. - - 422,499
. . . 75,000
- - - 22,220
20,619 362,544 383,163 163,929
16,748,216 39,795,908 56,544,124 14,680,713
5,856,742 7,942,179 13,798,921 646,313
1,291,870 2,886,655 4,178,525 -
6,180,224 11,363,630 17,543,854 15,046,612
2,155,893 14,166,443 16,322,336 -
15,484,729 36,358,907 51,843,636 15,692,925
1,263,487 3,437,001 4,700,488 (1,012,212)
- 1,283,126 1,283,126 -
392,270 1,582,361 1,974,631 52,977
(76,278) (2,520,398) (2,596,676) -
148,386 211,462 359,848 -
464,378 556,551 1,020,929 52,977
1,727,865 3,993,552 5,721,417 (959.235)
- 2,786,305 2,786,305 -
602,561 - 602,561 410,683
- (1,651,872) (1,651,872) (64,080)
602,561 1,134,433 1,736,994 346,603
2,330,426 5,127,985 7,458,411 (612,632)
30,498,710 253,834,300 284,333,010 (441,504)
$ 32,829,136 $ 258962285 $ 291,791,421 §  (1,054,136)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from interfund charges for health insurance
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers
Other receipts (payments)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Payments for the acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from taxes
Principal payments on revenue bonds
Proceeds from notes payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Interest and fiscal charges paid
Net cash used for capital
and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Payments for purchases of investments
Investment earnings received
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Miscellaneous revenue
Bad debt expense
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in payroll payable
Decrease in due to other funds
Increase in liabililty for incurred claims
Increase in retainage payable
Increase in guaranty deposits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities
NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Donated water and sewer distribution systems

Change in unrealized loss on investments

See notes to financial statements.

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Norman Norman
Municipal Utilities Interal
Authority Authority Total Service Fund
$ 17,028473 $ 39,358,163 $ 56,386,636 $ -
- - - 14,845,256
(5,769,384) (7,906,059) (13,675,443) (641,157)
(7,278,273) (13,615,840)  (20,894,113) (14,410,115)
208,069 1,169,450 1,377,519 (238,929)
4,188,885 19,005,714 23,194,599 (444,945)
602,561 - 602,561 410,683
- (1,651,872 (1,651,872) (64,080)
602,561 (1,651,872) (1,049.311) 346,603
55,941 30,225 86,166 -
(2,057,021) (20,531,398) (22,588,419) -
- 1,283,126 1,283,126 -
(170,000) - (170,000) -
- 6,447,741 6,447,741
(1,580,000) (7,296,095) (8,876,095) -
(87,670) (2.389.106) {2,476.776) -
(3,838,750) (22,455,507) (26,294,257) -
8,566,636 34,956,820 43,523,456 1,912,749
(4,610,244) (17,532,273) (22,142,517) (663,339)
288,523 1,225,242 1,513,765 43,133
4,244,915 18,649,789 22,894,704 1,292,543
5,197,611 13,548,124 18,745,735 1,194,201
5,237,380 32,585,168 37,822,548 1,242
$ 10,434,991 $§ 46,133,292 § 56,568,283 $ 1,195,443
$ 1,263,487 $ 3,437,001 $  4,700488 $ (1,012,212)
148,386 211,462 359,848 -
87,650 256,352 344,002 -
2,155,893 14,166,443 16,322,336 -
(17,095) 516,680 499,585 -
183,565 (696,695) (513,130 164,543
76,778 441,305 518,083 (9.838)
193,821 (169,310) 24,511 136,497
73,686 45,641 119,327 1,626
- - - (229,091)
- - - 500,000
- 803,755 803,755 -
9,042 2,601 11,643 -
13,672 (9,521) 4,151 3,530
§ 4183885 $ 19005714 § 23194599 § (444,945)
$ - $ 278305 $ 2786305 § -
$ (124,955) $ (468,720) §  (593.675) § -

-4 -



THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Mutual funds
U.S. Agencies
Interest receivable
Loans to 401(a) Plan participants
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND
NET POSITION

Funds held for others

Net position restricted for defined benefit pensions
Net position restricted for defined contribution pensions

Total liabilities and net position

See notes to financial statements.
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Pension
Trust
Fund

98,315,284

3,690,250

$ 102,005,534

162,027

101,843,507

$ 102,005,534

Centennial
Agency
Fund

§ 5928

3,782

16

$ 9,726

§ 9,726

§ 9,726



THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Pension benefits paid
Administration costs

Total deductions
NET INCREASE

Net position restricted for pension and retirement benefits,
Beginning of year

End of year

See notes to financial statements.
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Pension
Trust
Fund

$ 2,625,655

2,346,816

4,972,471

8,044,240

13,016,711

8,482,530
815

8,483,345

4,533,366

97,472,168

$ 102,005,534



THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Norman, Oklahoma (the “City”) conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for state and local
governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for municipalities are defined as those
principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The following
represent the more significant accounting and reporting policies and practices of the City,

Reporting Entity - The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and eight-member
council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and therefore data from
these units are combined with data of the City. Each blended component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component Units - The Norman Municipal Authority (“NMA”) was established in April 1965.
Activities of the NMA include financing and operating the Westwood Park recreational facilities and
sanitation services for the City. The governing body of the NMA is the same as the City’s governing
body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the NMA and receives all trust properties and resulting
revenues upon retirement of all trust indebtedness. The City maintains all accounting records. The
NMA is reported as an enterprise fund and does not issue separate financial statements.

The Norman Utilities Authority (“NUA”) was established February 2, 1970. Activities of the NUA
include financing and operating certain utility systems for the City. The governing body of the NUA is
the same as the City’s governing body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the NUA and receives all trust
properties upon termination. The City maintains all accounting records. The NUA is presented as an
enterprise fund and does not issue separate financial statements.

The Norman Tax Increment Finance Authority (“NTIF”) was established July 11, 2006. Activities of the
NTIF include financing Tax Increment Financing District #2 — University North Park. The governing
body of the NTIF is the same as the City’s governing body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the NTIF
and receives all trust properties upon termination. The City maintains all accounting records. The NTIF
is presented within the Capital Project Fund in the governmental funds balance sheet and does not issue
separate financial statements.

The Norman Economic Development Authority (“NEDA”) was established June 12, 2012, Activities of
the NEDA include financing and operating ecomonic development activities for the City. The governing
body of the NEDA is the same as the City’s governing body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the
NEDA and receives all trust properties upon termination. The City maintains all accounting records. As
of June 30, 2019, NEDA had no transcations.

Basis of presentation —The City follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”)
statements in the preparation of its financial statements. Additional information regarding the basis of
accounting and the differences in presentation are contained in the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, which preceded the financial statements.
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Government-wide and fund financial statements — The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange transactions are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external
customers for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and
reported as non-major funds.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation — The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of
agency funds which have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jfocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

Sales taxes, excise taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. Expenditure driven grants are
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility
requirements have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principal fund of the City which accounts for the general
operations of the City and all other financial transactions not reported in other funds.
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Public Safety Sales Tax Fund — A special revenue fund established to receive revenues from a special
half-cent sales tax dedicated to public safety activities.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources that
are restricted or assigned for the payment of interest and principal on the general long-term debt of the
City, other than debt service payments made by enterprise funds. Ad valorem taxes and interest
earned on investments of the Debt Service Fund are used for the payment of principal, interest and
commission to fiscal agents on the City’s general obligation bonds and judgments.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all major capital
improvements which have been financed by designated resources, except those accounted for in the
Norman Forward Fund or proprietary funds. Activities of the NTIF are included in this fund,

NORMAN FORWARD Fund — A capital projects fund established to receive revenues from a special
half-cent sales tax dedicated to quality-of-life projects including multiple recreation facilities,
libraries, parks, athletic venues, public art, trails, and swim complexes.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of government
grants or specific revenue sources (other than grants applicable to enterprise fund activities,
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted, commiteed or assigned to
expenditures for specified purposes. The City has eight nonmajor special revenue funds including:

e Norman Room Tax Fund - Established by City ordinance to receive revenues from the City
hotel/motel occupancy tax. Tax receipts are required to be used for promoting and fostering
convention and tourism development in the City.

o Community Development Fund - Established to account for the City’s Community Development
Block Grants, Home Ownership Made Easy (“HOME”) Grants, Rental Rehabilitation and
Emergency Shelter Grants received from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”).

e Special Grants Fund - Established to account for revenues and expenditures of other
miscellaneous grants received from various sources.

o Park Land Fund - Established by City ordinance to receive revenues from developer fees
dedicated to the acquisition of park land around the City.

o Seizures and Restitutions Fund - Established to account for the revenue available as a result of
property seizures resulting from criminal investigations.

e Cleet Fund - Established to account for revenue derived by provision of State law to be utilized
for law enforcement education and training.

s Transit and Parking Fund - Established to account for revenues and expenditures from transit and
parking services.

s Artin Public Places Fund - Established to account for donations made to provide public art
displays throughout the City.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
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Norman Municipal Authority — A blended component unit established to account for the construction
and operation of Westwood Park recreational facilities and the City’s sanitation services.

Norman Utilities Authority — A blended component unit established to account for the water and
wastewater utility systems for the City.

Risk Management Internal Service Fund — Established to account for the resources utilized by
departments to provide for the self-insurance of Workers’ Compensation and Unemployment
Insurance and to pay claims and receive premiums on insurance for employee health and property loss
on a long-term cost-reimbursement basis.

The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds - The Pension Trust Funds are used to account for the receipt, investment and
distribution of retirement contributions to the Annuity Pool portion of the Employee Retirement
System of the City. The Employee Retirement System Annuity Pool is a contributory defined benefit
plan. The Pension Trust Funds are also used to account for the receipt, investment and distribution of
retirement contributions from the City and employees to the Section 401(a) portion of the Employee
Retirement System of the City. The Section 401(a) plan is a defined contribution plan for qualifying
City employees.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or have
a measurement focus. Agency Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These
funds are used to account for assets that the City holds for others in an agency capacity. The City has
one agency fund, the Centennial Fund, which was created to account for assets held for the City’s
firefighters to develop a yearbook celebrating the centennial anniversary of the City of Norman
Firefighters.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to the general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the government’s enterprise funds. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds and the internal service fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Accounting Policies — The City’s significant accounting policies related to the following financial
statement categories are summarized below:

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
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Cash and Cash Equivalents - The City considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Investments - The City Charter requires all cash belonging to the City to be
placed in the custody of the Financial Services Department of the City. A “Pooled Cash™ concept
is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under this
method, all cash is pooled for investment purposes and e¢ach fund has equity in the pooled amounts.
Investments are allocated to the individual participating funds based upon a percentage determined
by the Financial Services Department of the City. An interfund receivable/payable is recognized if
the allocation of investments to a particular fund exceeds the fund’s pooled cash amount before the
allocation of the pooled investments.,

Purchases and maturities of the pooled investments, as reported in the fund’s statement of cash
flows, are allocated to the participating proprietary funds based on their portion of total pooled
investments,

Investments — Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The City considers
quoted market price at June 30, 2020, to be the fair value of its investments,

Oklahoma Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities; collateralized or insured certificates of deposit and other evidences
of deposit at banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions located in this
state, or fully insured certificates of deposit at banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations
and credit unions located out of state; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or
state-chartered bank, a savings bank, a savings and loan association or a state-licensed branch of a
foreign bank; prime banker’s acceptances which are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve
System and which do not exceed 270 days’ maturity; prime commercial paper which shall not-have
a maturity that exceeds 180 days nor represent more than 10% of the outstanding paper of an
issuing corporation; repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items
specified above; and money market funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
and which investments consist of those items noted above.

The Pension Trust Fund is invested based on guidelines established by its separate Board of
Trustees.

Receivables and payables — In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all
revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable
are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Interfund Receivables and Payables — Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either
“due to / due from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to / from
other funds” (i.¢., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to / from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Restricled Assets — Restricted assets include cash and investments of both governmental activities
and business-type activities that are legally restricted as to their use. The restricted assets are
primarily related to debt trustee accounts and guaranty deposits.
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Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$2,500 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets, the majority of which generally consist of donated land and infrastructure which are
recorded in the governmental funds and donated water and sewer distribution systems which are
recorded in the proprietary funds, are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment and
infrastructure are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings 40 — 65 years
Infrastructure 25 — 50 years
Improvements other than buildings & infrastructure 10 — 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 20 years
Vehicles 3 —7 vears

Inventory — The City records parts and fuel inventory within the General fund. Parts inventory is
valued at actual cost using the first-in/first out method. Fuel inventory is recorded using average
cost. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than
when purchased.

Long-term Debt — In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts, and losses on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed during the current period.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures,

Liability for Incurred Claims - The liability for incurred claims represents estimated claims
(including future claim adjustment expenses) incurred but unpaid for workers compensation, group
medical and dental, and unemployment claims as of the fiscal year end. The estimate includes
claims reported as of June 30, 2020, as well as an estimated amount representing claims incurred
but not reported. The City utilizes the services of an actuary in computation of the incurred but
unpaid workers compensation portion of the liability.

Claims and Judgments Payable - Under state law, judgments against the City can be paid over
three years or can be paid immediately. The General Fund pays all claims and judgments. A
liability has been recorded within the government-wide statements for claims and judgments
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payable. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds when they become due
and payable.

Compensated Absences - Under the terms of union contracts and City personnel policies, City
employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an
employee is paid for vacation leave accumulated and vested accumulated sick leave. Vesting of
sick leave by employees and the maximum number of hours that can be accumulated for vacation
and sick leave are dependent upon an employee’s years of service. Upon retirement, one-half of
accumulated sick leave is converted to vacation time, subject to the above limitation for maximum
compensation for unused compensated absences.

A liability has been recorded within the government-wide and proprietary financial statements for
accrued vacation and sick leave and certain salary related payments associated with the payment of
compensated absences. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Fund Equity — In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and
displayed in three components:

1. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any notes or other borrowings attributable to those
assets.

2. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by
external groups, such as grantors or laws and regulations of other governments, or law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3. Unrestricted net position — All other assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“net investment in capital assets.”

When both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available for use, generally it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first. For projects funded with tax-exempt debt proceeds and
other sources, the debt proceeds are used first.

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
follows and based on the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific
purposes.

a) Nonspendable — Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in
spendable form or because of legal or contractual requirements.

b) Restricted — Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are
externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

¢) Committed — Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the City through formal action of the highest level of decision making
authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision making authority that can, by
adoption of an Ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action by City
Council is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.
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d) Assigned — Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed.
The City Council may assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover
a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated
budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an
additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.
Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a
commitment.

e) Unassigned — Includes the residual balance of the General Fund that has not been assigned to
other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes with
the General Fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted sources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance) are available for use, generally it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first.
Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose,
committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund
balance is applied last.

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The City participates in two cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans, the
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (OFPRS) and the Oklahoma Police Pension
and Retirement System (OPPRS) (the Plans). For purposes of measuring the net pension asset,
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Defined Benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

The City has a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan, (the
OPEB Plan). For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, these line items have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The City
has a deferred outflow for a bond refunding, which is the difference in the carrying value of
refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred or amortized to interest expense
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or new debt. In addition, the City has deferred outflows
related to pensions or other post employment benefits (OPEB), See Note 4(b) and 4(c) for
additional information.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The City has a
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deferred inflow related to pensions and OPEB plans. See Note 4(b) and 4(c) for additional
information.

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

a.

Property Tax Revenue - Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.
Taxes are levied annually on November 1 and are due one-half by December 31 and one-half by
March 31. The Tax Assessor’s office bills and collects the property taxes and remits to the City its
portion. Property taxes not paid prior to April are considered delinquent. Such delinquent tax
payments have not historically been material. Delinquent tax payments are received throughout the
year and are recognized as revenue in the year received, except for those received within 60 days of
year end, which are recognized as revenues as of June 30, 2020 in both the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Sales Taxes - Sales taxes are collected by vendors and required to be remitted to the State of
Oklahoma by the 20th of the month following collection. The tax is then paid to the City by the
10th of the next month. A two month lag exists between collection by the vendor and payment to
the City by the State. Revenue received in July and August from sales made in May and June,
respectively, is available for prior year expenses and is accrued in both the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Charges for Service — Charges for services consist primarily of charges made by the General Fund
for services such as motor pool usage, printing, accounting, data processing, facilities usage and
other benefits provided to the other funds of the City.

Intergovernmental Revenues/Capital Grants Earned - Revenues from Federal and State operating
grants are recognized when expenditures are made. Similarly, capital grants are considered earned
when the expenditures are made. The earned portion of capital grants in Proprietary Funds is
treated as a capital contribution within the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net
position.

Investment Earnings - Investment earnings on pooled cash and investments are allocated on a pro-
rata basis to the City’s funds based on the percentage of each fund’s average month-end pooled
cash balance.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net position — The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between
Jund balance — total governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term
liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension and OPEB liabilities (including related deferred
outflows/inflows of resources), are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds.” The details of this $210,636,152 difference are as follows:

General obligation bonds payable $ 67,812,055
Sales tax revenue notes payable 83,480,000
Notes payable 3,195,000
Compensated absences 8,907,329
Net OPEB obligation 8,762,331
Net pension liability 40,296,319
Deferred outflows of resources (15,251,348)
Deferred inflow of resources 12,219,118
Accrued interest payable ' 1,215,348

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to arrive at
net assets - governmental activities $ 210,636,152

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities - The
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $2,051,082 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 24,521,323
Depreciation expense (22,470,241)
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances ~ total governmental funds

to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 2,051,082

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Contributed capital assets (land, buildings, and
infrastructure) and other miscellaneous capital asset transactions recorded in government-wide financial
statements but not recorded in fund level financial statements.” The details of this $5,737,159 difference
are as follows:
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Donations of capital assets increase net position in the statement of activities, but
do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not financial resouces. $ 6,285,918

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial
resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balance
by the cost of the capital asset sold. (54,317)

The statement of activities reports gains arising from the trade-in of existing capital
assets to acquire new capital assets. Conversely, governmental funds do not report
any gain or loss on a trade-in of capital assets. (494.442)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds
to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 5,737,159

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.” The details of this $394,356 difference are as follows:

Change in accrued interest payable $  (139,776)
Change in net pension and OPEB obligations (71,904)
Change in debt issuance premium or discount (182,676)

Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $  (394,356)

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The City Manager is required by City Charter and the Oklahoma
Municipal Budget Act to prepare and submit an annual budget to the City Council. A budget is prepared
and legally adopted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Capital
Projects Fund. These budgets are prepared on a cash basis for revenues, except for accrued interest
receivable and other receivables. For budget purposes, expenditures include amounts paid and
encumbered, as well as amounts in accounts payable at the end of the fiscal year. Purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded as encumbrances to reserve a
portion of the applicable appropriation.

Budgeted expenditures and encumbrances for the budgeted funds cannot exceed the estimated revenues
and fund balance, and it is unlawful for the City to create or authorize creation of a deficit in any of these
funds. Budgetary control is exercised by function at the fund level. These functional categories include
salaries and benefits; supplies and materials; services and maintenance; debt service; and capital outlay.
Amendments must be approved by the City Council. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
budgeted appropriations within individual funds, but cannot alter the appropriations on a fund level
without City Council approval. Supplemental appropriations within all funds by the City Council during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 amounted to $12,503,493. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at
year end while encumbered appropriations are carried over to the ensuing fiscal year until utilized or
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canceled and are classified within the restricted, committed or assigned fund balance category, as
appropriate, based on the criteria of the fund balance classifications.

Oklahoma Statutes also require the City Council each year to make an ad valorem tax levy for a sinking
fund (Debt Service Fund) which shall, with cash and investments in the fund, be sufficient to pay all the
bonded indebtedness, interest and one-third of all outstanding judgments coming due in the following
year.

DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s policy for collateralization is that pledged securities
will have a market value of at least 102% of the value of funds on deposit and that collateral be limited to
either 1) U.S. Treasury, agency and instrumentality securities or 2) direct debt obligations of
municipalities, counties, and school districts in Oklahoma. As of June 30, 2020, none of the City’s bank
balance of $113,114,326 was exposed to custodial credit risk. Approximately $16,905,000 in uninvested
cash was in trustee accounts and not considered to be uncollateralized. As of June 30, 2020, the City’s
carrying balance of these deposits was $111,129,705.
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Interest Rate Risk - As of June 30, 2020, the City had the following investments subject to interest rate
risk:

Weighted
Average
Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value (Years)
Money Market Mutual Funds $ 81,903,473 0.08
U.S. Treasury Notes 17,893,905 0.11
Federal Home Loan Bank 24,993,635 2.20
Federal Farm Credit Bank 1,530,340 1.22
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 4,584,420 0.80
Tennessee Valley Authority 3,323,645 0.63
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 747,036 3.67
Total fair value $ 134,976,454
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.67

In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting investment maturities to not more than ten years from the date of purchase.

The following schedules reconcile the carrying amounts of deposits and investments above to the
government-wide statement of net position:
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Primary Government:

Carrying value of deposits -
Pooled and nonpooled funds
Money market mutual funds
Less: Certificates of deposits classified as investments

Cash as reported on the government-wide
statement of net position -
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - long-term

Carrying value of investments -
Pooled and nonpooled funds
Site development certificate of deposits

Less: Money market mutual funds classified as cash equivalent

As reported on the government-wide
statement of net position -
Investments
Restricted investments - current

$ 111,129,705
81,903,473
(3.977,613)

$ 189,055,565

$ 75,282,042

107,027,811
6,745,712

$ 189,055,565
$ 134,976,454
3,977,613
(81,903,473)

$ 57,050,594

$ 54,072,981
2,977,613

$ 57,050,594

Credit Risk —The City’s investment policy does not cover credit risk. The City’s investments as of June
30, 2020 were rated by Moody’s Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s as follows:

Federal Farm Credit Bank

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation
Tennessee Valley Authority

U.S. Treasury Notes

Money Market Mutual Funds

Moody's S &P
Aaa AA+
Aaa AA+
Aaa AA+
Aaa AA+
Aaa AA+
Aaa AA+

Unrated Unrated
Unrated Unrated

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy places no limit on the amount the City may
invest in any one issuer. More than 5% of the City’s investments are in Federal Home Loan Bank and
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United States Treasury Notes. These investments are 19% and 13%, respectively, of the City’s total
investments. Additionally, the City is invested in two money market mutual funds; the Federated
Government Obligations Tax Managed Fund and the Cavanal Hill Government Securities Money Market
Fund, which represents 32% and 28%, respectively of the City’s total investments.

Fiduciary Funds — The City’s fiduciary funds are not included in the risks and amounts identified above
and are invested in mutual funds traded on public exchanges and have substantially the same risks as the
primary government.

Custodial Credit Risk —Investments — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. It is the City’s policy to maintain investment securities that
are insured or registered in the City’s name and held by the City or its agent in the City’s name whenever
possible. As of June 30, 2020, the City’s investment were not exposed to custodial credit risk as all of
the City’s investments were registered in the name of the City and held by a counterparty.

Investments Measured at Fair Value

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair

value of the asset. Level | inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020:
e US Treasury securities of $17,893,905 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 2 inputs).

® [Federal government agencies securities of $35,179,076 are valued using quoted market prices of
similar assets in an active market (Level 2 inputs).

* Money market mutual funds of $81,903,473 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1
inputs).

¢ Mutual funds of $98,315,284 reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position are valued
using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

Amount Due From Federal Government - The amount shown in both the government-wide and fund
financial statements as due from the Federal government represents $1,595,552 of allowable
expenditures under various direct and pass through grants for which the City has requested
reimbursement.

Loan Receivable — On April 25, 2017, trustees of the Norman Tax Increment Finance Authority
approved a $3,000,000 loan to the Norman Economic Development Coalition (NEDC) that was used to
payoff a loan between NEDC and Republic Bank & Trust Company. The original loan was made to
purchase and make improvements to land within the University North Park area to attract potential
employers. The balance of the loan has been offset by an equal allowance for an uncollectible amount
within the government-wide financial statements.
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Interfund receivables and payables — Interfund receivables and payables for the year ended June 30,
2020:

Due From
Nonmajor Norman Debt Total
Due General Governmental Capital Forward Service Enterprise  Internal Due
To Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund From
General Fund $ - $ 46,787 § 118575 § 106,809 § 44916 $§ 358499 § 9838 § 685,424
Public Safety 710,142 - - - - - - 710,142
Sales Tax Fund
Nonmajor 25,374 - - - - - - 25,374
Governmental
Funds
Total Due To $ 735516 § 46,787 § 118575 3§ 106,809 § 449016 $ 358499 § 9838 $ 1,420.940

Transfers - Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Transfers In

Public
Safety Capital Norman  Nonmajor Internal Total
Transfers General Sales Tax Projects Forward Government Enterprise  Service Transfers
al
Out Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds - Fund Out
General Fund $ - % 1,522,032 % - 3 - § 5215823 § 280,736 § - § 7,018,591
Nonmajor Governmental 2,335,035 - 2,028,435 150,000 - 204,641 - 4,718,111
Funds
Debt Svs Fund - . N - B - 410,683 410,683
Capital Projects Fund 4,586,442 462,948 326,811 - 163,125 82,184 - 5,621,510
Norman Forward Fund 139,328 35,000 174,328
Internal Service Fund 64,080 - - - - - - 64,080
Enterprise Funds 1,597.453 - - 54,419 - - - 1,651,872
Total Transfers In $ 8722338 3§ 1984980 3 2355246 $ 204419 § 5378948 $ 602561 § 410683 § 19.659.175

Transfers are used for varying reasons including but not limited to moving unrestricted general fund
revenues to finance various programs that the City must account for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant
programs.,

The most significant transfers were initiated by the City for the following reasons:

e The Capital Projects Fund transferred $3,512,432 to the General Fund to pay for the purchase of
vehicles and equipment and fund street maintenance projects.

¢ The Community Development Fund transferred $2,028,435 to the Capital Fund to reimburse for
up-front payment of Community Development Block Grant — Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) grant
fund expenses stemming from 2015 spring storms.
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e The Debt Services Fund transferred $410,683 to the Risk Management Internal Service Fund to
pay for judgments awarded against the City and funded via the property tax rolls over a three year
period.

e The Enterprise Funds transferred $1,597,453 to the General Fund as a fee in lieu of franchise fees.

» The General Fund transferred $5,215,823 to the Transportation and Parking Fund to cover startup
costs. The Transportation and Parking Fund transferred the General Fund $2,335,035 to return
some of the startup costs.

e The General Fund transferred $1,522,032 to the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund to cover operating
costs.

Capital Assets — Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 66,574,164 § 1,786,550 $ - $ 68,360,714
Construction in progress 69,089,640 20,468,421 (43,418,824) 46,139,237
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 47,506,077 31,012,575 - 78,518,652
Ireprovements other than buildings 37,547,244 1,231,252 - 38,778,496
Machinery and equipment 39,832,004 4,565,839 (274,355) 44,123,488
Vehicles 22,889,503 2,845,058 (692,861) 25,041,700
Infrastructure 618,527,757 12,316,372 - 630.844.129
Totals at historical cost 901,966,389 74.226.067 (44.386,040) _ 931.806.416
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (18,259,145) (1,694,292) - (19,953,437)
Improvements other than buildings (15,415,872) (1,658,416) - (17,074,288)
Machinery and equipment (27,338,159) (3,758,740) 270,789 (30.826,110)
Vehicles (14,401,690) (1,924,534) 147,666 (16,178,558)
Infrastructure (360.435.622) (13.434.259) - _(373.869.881)
Total accumulated depreciation (435.850.488) (22.470.241) 418.455 (457.902.274)
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 466,115,901 $ 51755826 § (43,967,585) § 473,904,142

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 10,417,288 % - 5 - $ 10,417,288
Construction in progress 39,439,672 20,043,562 (238,744) 59,244,490
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 207,059,657 2,913,288 (1,853,536) 208,119,409
Machinery and equipment 211.658.654 2,337,180 (619,503) _ 213.376,331
Totals at historical cost 468,575,271 25.294.030 (2.711.783) __ 491.157.518
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements (109,698,937) (5.261,242) 1,600,169 (113,360,010)
Machinery and equipment (73.437.397) (11,061.094) 606,557 (83.891,934)
Total accumulated depreciation (183.136.334) (16,322.336) 2,206,726 (197.251,944)
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 285438937 $§ 8,971,694 § (505,057) $ 293,905,574
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows;

Governmental activities:

General government $1,081,835
Planning 61,287
City controller 305,778
Parks and recreation 2,403,359
Public works 15,080,437
Public service 202
Public safety 3.537.343
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $22,470,24

Business-type activities:

Westwood park $172,731
Utilities authority 14,166,443
Sanitation services 1.983.162

Total depreciation expense — business-type activities 816,322,336

Pension Plan Obligations - Each qualified employee participates in one of the three retirement plans in
which the City participates. These are The Employee Retirement System of the City of Norman, The
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, and The Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System. The City does not maintain the accounting records, hold the investments nor
administer the firefighters’ or police retirement funds. The police officers’ and firefighters’ plans are
statewide systems administered by the State of Oklahoma. The municipal employees’ plan is managed
by a separate board of trustees, and the assets are held in custody and administered by two asset
managers.

Pension Plan
The City participates in three pension retirement plans:

¢ Employee Retirement System of the City of Norman — A single-employer employee retirement
system.

e Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (OFPRS) — A statewide cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.

e Oklahoma Police Pension & Retirement System (OPPRS) — A statewide cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan.

The aggregate total for all pension-related items for all defined benefit plans is as follows:
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Governmental

Activities
Pension expense
Employee Retirement System $51,474
OFPRS 6,107,376
OPPRS 2,870,751
$9,029,601
Net pension liability (asset)
Employee Retirement System $0
OFPRS 40,296,319
OPPRS (241,484)
$40,054,835
Deferred outflows of resources
Employee Retirement System $0
OFPRS 9,177,780
OPPRS 4,996,493
$14,174.273
Deferred inflows of resources
Employee Retirement System $0
OFPRS 7,457,874
OPPRS 1,200,617
58,658491

A summary of significant data for each of the retirement plans follows:

a.  Employee Retirement System of the City of Norman - Plan Description - The Employee Retirement
System (“ERS”) of the City of Norman is a single-employer public employee retirement system
which was established on November 1, 1967 by a City ordinance and amended on January 29, 1985
and July 1, 1991. The ERS was originally established as a defined benefit plan. On July 1, 1991,
the City converted that portion of the ERS which related to unretired participants to a money
purchase plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “401(a) Plan”). An amount
equal to the greater of the participants vested benefits under the ERS or their account balance in the
ERS was transferred to a participant account in the 401(a) Plan. The portion of the ERS that relates
to retired participants at July 1, 1991 (“the Annuity Pool”) remains in existence to pay benefits to
those retired employees receiving benefits at July 1, 1991. The activities of the Annuity Pool and
the 401(a) Plan are recorded in separate Pension Trust Funds which are included within the City’s

financial statements.

The ERS does not issue a stand-alone financial report. Overall the defined benefit portion of the
ERS plan is not entrical to the City’s financial statement as a whole. Therefore the information
provided is for informational purposes only and is not intended to comply with the provisions of
GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB

Statement 27.
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The ERS is managed by a Board of Trustees, composed of six members, meeting once a month.
Members by position include the City Manager, Finance Director and Personnel Director. One
additional member is elected by the City Council and the final two members are elected by the
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees Union membership.

Basis of Accounting — The ERS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period that the
contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Value Investments — ERS plan investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national
exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price. Investments that do not have an established
market are reported at estimated fair value.

As of June 30, 2020, and for the year ended, the ERS held no securities issued by the City or other
related parties.

1. Annuity Pool - As of July 1, 2019, the date of the last actuarial study, the Annuity Pool
participants included eight retirees and other beneficiaries who are entitled retirement benefits
including a death benefit equal to a lump sum amount equal to the normal retirement as
projected for a ten year period of time.

At July 1, 2019 the Actuarial Accrued Liability for the Annuity Pool was $254,290 and the
market value of assets in the Annuity Pool was $206,350. The City’s actuary has suggested
an annual contribution for a period of ten years commencing July 1, 2020. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b)
no projected salary increases, and (c¢) no cost of living increases. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of investments over a five-year period. The City did not make a contribution to the plan
in 2020. The City will make future contributions as needed to make benefit payments should
present plan assets be insufficient to do so.

2. The 401(a) Plan - The 401(a) Plan is a money purchase defined contribution plan under
section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. All non-voluntary contributions have been
designated by the City as “picked up contributions™ pursuant to Internal Revenue Code
section 414(h)(2) and are treated as employer contributions for federal income tax purposes.

The City’s payroll for employees covered by the 401(a) Plan for the year ended June 30, 2020
was $30,890,059, and total City payroll was $61,646,528.

Substantially all full-time, non-uniformed employees of the City are required to participate in
the 401(a) Plan. At June 30, 2020, there were 588 plan participants. Participants are required
to contribute 6.5% of their compensation to the 401(a) Plan each pay period. This
contribution is matched by the City at a rate of 8.5% of payroll. Administrative costs are
financed through investment earnings. Participants become vested in the City’s contribution
as follows:
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Years of Service

Less than 2
2
3
4
5

Vesting Percentage

0%
25%
50%
75%
100%

The amount forfeited for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $67,965. Contributions to the
401(a) Plan for 2020 were $4,972,471. The contributions expressed in dollars and percent of
covered payroll were: City - $2,625,655, 8.5%, participants - $2,346,816, 6.5%. The
contribution requirements are in accordance with the City ordinance. Plan provisions and
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City Council.

Trend Information
401(a) Plan

City's City's
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed
2018 2,520,077 100%
2019 2,566,797 100%
2020 2,625,655 100%

Financial Reports — Neither the Annuity Pool nor the 401(a) Plan issues stand-alone financial
reports and are not included in the report of a public employee retirement system or a report of
another entity. Their financial statements are as follows:

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Assets
Investments - mutual funds
Loans to 401(a) Plan participants

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Position
Net position restricted for pension benefits

Total liabilities and net position
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Annuity 401(a) Plan
Pool Fund Fund Total
$ 162,027 $ 98,153,257 § 98,315,284
- 3,690,250 3,690,250
$ 162,027 $ 101,843,507 $ 102,005,534
$ 162,027 §$ 101,843,507 $ 102,005,534
$ 162,027 $ 101,843,507 $ 102,005,534




Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Additions;
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Investment income (loss)
Total additions
Deductions:
Pension benefits paid
Administration costs

Total deductions

Net increase (decrease)

Net position restricted for pension and retirement benefits:

Beginning of year

End of year

Annuity  401(a) Plan

Pool Fund Fund Total
$ - $ 2,625,655 $§ 2,625,655
- 2,346,816 2,346,816
7,596 8,036,644 8,044,240
7,596 13,009,115 13,016,711
50,659 8,431,871 8,482,530
815 - 815
51,474 8,431,871 8,483,345
(43,878) 4,577,244 4,533,366
205,905 97,266,263 97,472,168
$ 162,027 $101,843,507 $ 102,005,534

Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retivement System (OFPRS)

Plan Description - Members of the City’s Fire Department are covered by the Oklahoma
Firefighters Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS), which is a statewide cost sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system (the OFPRS Plan). The plan is administered by a
board of trustees (the Board) appointed under state statute. Benefit provisions are contained in the
Plan document and were established and can be amended by action of the OFPRS’ board of

trustees. The plan issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at

www.ok.gov/fprs/.

Benefits Provided — In general, the OFPRS Plan provides defined retirement benefits based on
members’ final average compensation, age, and term of service. In addition, the retirement

program provides for benefits upon disability and to survivors upon death of eligible members.
The Plan’s benefits are established and amended by state statute. Retirement provisions are as

follows:

Hired Prior to November I, 2013 — Normal retirement is attained upon completing 20 years

of service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 50% of the member’s final average
compensation. Final average compensation is defined as the monthly average of the highest
30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of participating service.

Hired After November 1, 2013 - Normal retirement is attained upon completing 22 years of

service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 55% of the member's final average
compensation. Final average compensation is defined as the monthly average of the highest
30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of participating service, Also must be age 50 to

begin receiving benefits,
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All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the
disability in-the-line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal
to 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of
service. For firefighters with over 20 years of service, a disability in-the-line-of-duty is
calculated based on 2.5% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30
months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years of service. For disabilities not-in-
the-line-of-duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 years of service and is
50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-month salary as
opposed to 30 months.

A 35,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient
upon the participant's death. The $5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the
vested benefit.

Firefighters hired prior to November 1, 2013, with 20 or more years of service may elect to
participate in the Oklahoma Firefighters Deferred Retirement Option Plan (the "Deferred
Option Plan"). Firefighters hired after November 1, 2013, with 22 or more years of service
may elect to participate in the Deferred Option Plan. Active participation (having benefit
payments credited to the account) in the Deferred Option Plan shall not exceed 5 years. Under
the Deferred Option Plan, retirement benefits are calculated based on compensation and
service at the time of election. The retirement benefits plus half of the municipal contributions
on behalf of the participant are deposited into a deferred retirement account. The Deferred
Option Plan accounts are credited with interest at a rate of 2% below the rate of return on the
investment portfolio of the Plan, with a guaranteed minimum interest rate equal to the
assumed actuarial interest rate of 7.5%, as approved by the Board. The participant is no
longer required to make contributions. Upon retirement, the firefighter receives his/her
monthly retirement benefit as calculated at the time of election. The member can elect to
either leave the account balance accumulated in the Deferred Option Plan account or they can
elect to have the balance paid to them either as a lump sum or in specified monthly payments,
If the member elects to leave their account balance in the Deferred Option Plan account, they
will continue to earn interest on their balance at the rate described above; however, no more
benefit payments will be credited to their account. The member can leave their account
balance in the Deferred Option Plan account until the age of 70%: . When the member reaches
70%2 years of age, they must either begin receiving regular monthly payments, based on the
annuity method, or a lump sum distribution.

The Deferred Option Plan was modified effective November 1, 2013, to limit post-retirement
interest for new members to a rate of return on the portfolio, less a 1% administrative fee. In
addition, the members participating must withdraw all money by the age of 70'% .

In the 2003 Legislative Session, Senate Bill 286 and House Bill 1464 created a "Back" DROP
for members of the System effective July 1, 2003, The "Back" DROP is a modified deferred
retirement option plan. The "Back” DROP allows the member flexibility by not having to
commit to terminate employment within 5 years. Once a member has met their normal
retirement period of 20 years for those hired prior to November 1, 2013, and 22 years for
those hired after November 1, 2013, the member can choose, upon retirement, to be treated as
if the member had entered into the Deferred Option Plan. A member, however, cannot receive
credit to the Deferred Option Plan account based upon any years prior to when the member
reached their normal retirement date. Once a member is ready to retire, the member can make
the election to participate in the "Back" DROP and can receive a Deferred Option Plan benefit
based upon up to 5 years of participation. The member's regular retirement benefit will not
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take into account any years of service credited to the "Back” DROP. Firefighters with 20
years of service or who were receiving pension benefits as of May 26, 1983, are entitled to
post-retirement adjustments equal to one-half the increase or decrease for top-step
firefighters. Pensions will not be adjusted below the level at which the firefighter retired.

Contributions — The Board has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements
of the City and active employees. Members of the OFPRS are required to pay 9% of their base pay
to the pension plan until they reach 20 years of service, after which no contributions are required.
The City is contractually required to pay 14% of base salary. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the
total contribution to the system amounted to $2,932,772 of which $1,785,165 was made by the City
and $1,147,607 was made by the employees. These contributions represent 14% (City) and 9%
(member) of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that is expected to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with any additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The total amount contributed to the system by the State of Oklahoma
on behalf of the City was approximately $3,878,000 and does not meet the criteria of a special
funding situation.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of $40,296,319, for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The City’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2019, the City’s proportion was 3.813534%

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $6,107,376. At June 30,
2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience § 6,747,604 $ 819,643
Changes of assumptions or other inputs - 1,035,189
Employer change in proportion and differences between
contributions recognized and proportionate share of
contributions 645,011 2,686,057
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - 2,916,985
City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,785,165 -
Total $ 9,177,780 $ 7,457,874
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At June 30, 2020, the City reported $1,785,165 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources totaling ($65,259) related to
pensions will be recognized as a (reduction) or increase in pension expense as follows:

2021 $ 906,420
2022 (628,508)
2023 222,180
2024 (246,847)
2025 (318.504)
$ (65,259)

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuations was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation ©2.75% (3.0% - 2018)

Salary increases 2.75% to 10.5%, average, including inflation (3.5% -
9.0% -2018)

Ad hoc cost of living adjustments Half of the dollar amount of a 2.75% (3.0% - 2018)

Assumed increase in base pay for retirees with 20
years of service as of May 26, 1983
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Safety Table with generational mortality
improvement using MP-2018 (RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined with generational mortality
improvement using Scale AA for healthy lives and no mortality improvement for disabled lives in
2018).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summaried in the following table:
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Long-Term

Expected
Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Fixed Income 20% 4.90%
Domestic Equity 42% 7.09%
International Equity 20% 9.19%
Real Estate 10% 7.99%
Other Assets 8% 5.57%

100%

Discount Rate — The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5% for
the measurement period ended June 30, 2019. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that participating employer contributions will be made at contractually required rates,
actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the penion plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the

Discount Rate — The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability has been calculated
using a discount rate of 7.5%. The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability calculated using a discount rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 52,033,805 § 40,296,319 § 27,407,335

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued OFPRS Plan financial report, which can be located at
www.ok.gov/fprs/.

Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS)

Plan Description - Members of the City’s Police Department are covered by the Oklahoma Police
Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS), which is a statewide cost sharing multiple-employer
public employee retirement system (the OPPRS Plan). The plan is administered by a board of
trustees (the Board) appointed under state statute. Benefit provisions are contained in the Plan
document and were established and can be amended by action of the OPPRS’ board of trustees.
The plan issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/OPPRS/.

Benefits Provided - In general, the OPPRS Plan provides defined retirement benefits based on
members’ final average compensation, age, and term of service. In addition, the retirement
program provides for benefits upon disability and to survivors upon death of eligible members.
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The Plan’s benefits are established and amended by state statute. Retirement provisions are as
follows:

¢  The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes
20 years of credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing
10 years of credited service as a contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior
to completing 10 years of credited service. Participants’ contributions are refundable, without
interest, upon termination prior to normal retirement. Participants who have completed 10
years of credited service may elect a vested benefit in lieu of having their accumulated
contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the participant is entitled to a monthly
retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 years of age or the date
the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment continued
uninterrupted, whichever is later.

¢ Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined as the
average paid base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60
months of credited service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30
years of credited service considered.

e  Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are
2.5% of the participants’ final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is
reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment,
After 10 years of credited service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any
cause are eligible for a monthly benefit based on 2.5% of their final average salary multiplied
by the years of service. This disability benefit is also reduced by stated percentages for partial
disability based on the percentage of impairment. Effective July 1, 1998, once a disability
benefit is granted to a participant, that participant is no longer allowed to apply for an
increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.

e  Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a
retired participant, The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is
entitled to a pension benefit. Effective July 1, 1999, a $5,000 death benefit is also paid, in
addition to any survivor’s pension benefits under the Plan, to the participant’s beneficiary or
estate for active or retired members.

e The Deferred Option allows participants otherwise eligible for a normal retirement benefit to
defer terminating employment and drawing retirement benefits for a period not to exceed 5
years. Under the Deferred Option, retirement benefits are calculated based on compensation
and service at the time of election and a separate account is established for each participant.
During the participation period, the employee’s retirement benefit is credited to the
participant’s account along with a portion of the employer’s contribution and interest. Interest
is credited at a rate of 2% below the rate of return on the investment portfolio of the Plan,
with a guaranteed minimum interest equal to the assumed actuarial interest of 7.5%.
Employee contributions cease once participation in the Deferred Option is elected. At the
conclusion of participation in the Deferred Option, the participant will receive the balance in
the separate account under payment terms allowed by the Deferred Option and will then begin
receiving retirement benefit payments as calculated at the time of election.

e Inthe 2003 Legislative Session, Senate Bill 688 and House Bill 1464 created a “Back™ DROP
for members of the System. The “Back™ DROP is a modified deferred retirement option plan.
The “Back™ DROP allows the member flexibility by not having to commit to terminate
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employment within 5 years. Once a member has met their normal retirement period of 20
years, the member can choose, upon retirement, to be treated as if the member had entered
into the “Back” DROP, A member, however, cannot receive credit to the “Back” DROP
account based upon any years prior to when the member reached their normal retirement date.
Once a member is ready to retire, the member can make the election to participate in the
“Back” DROP and can receive a “Back” DROP benefit based upon up to 5 years of
participation. The member’s regular retirement benefit will not take into account any years of
service credited to the “Back™ DROP.

e In 2006, the Board approved a method of payment called the Deferred Option Payout
Provision (the “Payout Provision”). The Payout Provision allows a retired member who has
completed participation in the Deferred Option or the “Back™ DROP the ability to leave their
account balance in the Plan. The retired member’s account balance will be commingled and
reinvested with the total assets, and therefore the member will not be able to direct their
personal investments. Written election must be made to the Board no more than 30 days
following the termination of employment.

e  Upon participating in the Payout Provision, a retired member shall not be guaranteed a
minimum rate of return on their investment. A retired member shall earn interest on their
account as follows:

a) The retired member shall earn two percentage points below the net annual rate of return of
the investment portfolio of the System.

b) If the portfolio earns less than a 2% rate of return, but more than zero, the retired member
shall earn zero percentage points.

¢) If the portfolio earns less than zero percentage points, there shall be a deduction from the
retired member’s balance equal to the net annual rate of return of the investment portfolio of
the System.

Interest as earned above shall be credited to the retired member’s account.

The Oklahoma Legislature has the authority to grant percentage increases or special one-time
payments to persons receiving benefits from the Plan. Additionally, certain retirees are entitled to
receive a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) when a COLA is granted to active police officers in
the retiree’s city. Participants eligible to receive both types of benefit increases are to receive the
greater of the legislative increase or the benefit increase the participant would receive pursuant to
the COLA provision.

Contributions — The Board has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements
of the City and active employees. Members of the OPPRS are required to pay 8% of their base pay
to the pension plan. The City is contractually required to pay 13% of base salary. For the year
ended June 30, 2020, the total contribution to the system amounted to $2,883,555 of which
$1,787,879 was made by the City and $1,095,676 was made by the employees. These contributions
represent 13% (City) and 8% (member) of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that
is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The total amount contributed to the system by
the State of Oklahoma on behalf of the City was approximately $1,496,000 and does not meect the
criteria of a special funding situation.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2020, the City reported an asset of ($241,484), for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was
measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension asset used to calculate the net pension liability
(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The City’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset) was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the City’s proportion was 3.7826%

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $2,870,751. At June 30,
2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 144,921 § 1,140,155
Change in assumptions or other inputs 616,607 -
Employer change in proportion and differences between
contributions recognized and proportionate share
of contributions 240,386 60,462
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 2,206,700 -
pension plan investments
City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,787,879 -
Total $ 4,996,493 $ 1,200,617

At June 30, 2020, the City reported $1,787,879 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources totaling $2,007,997 related to
pensions will be recognized as a (reduction) or increase in pension expense as follows:

2021 $ 1,086,988
2022 (294,043)
2023 396.776
2024 765,365
2025 62.911

$___2,007,997

-55 -



Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuations was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3.5% to 12.2%, average, including inflation
Cost of living adjustments Police officers eligible to receive increased

benefits according to repealed Section 50-120 of
Title 11 of the Oklahoma Statutes pursuant to a
court order receive an adjustment of 1/3 to 1/2
of the increase or decrease of any adjustment to
the base salary of a regular police officer, based
on an increase in base salary.

Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined with generational
mortality improvement using Scale AA with age set back four years for active, pre-retirement
employees. For active post-retirement employees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Blue
Collar Healthy Combined index with generational mortality improvement using Scale AA. For
disabled pensioners, mortality rates index were based on the RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy
Combined index with age set forward four years.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation was based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summaried in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Fixed Income 25% 4.79%
Domestic Equity 35% 5.74%
International Equity 15% 9.19%
Real Estate 10% 7.99%
Private Equity 10% 10.20%
Other Assets 5% 3.50%

100%

Discount Rate — The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5% for
the measurement period ended June 30, 2019. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that participating employer contributions will be made at contractually required rates,
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actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the penion plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the
Discount Rate — The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) has been
calculated using a discount rate of 7.5%. The following presents the City’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) calculated using a discount rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the
current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $ 10,287,129 $ (241,484) § (9,143,560)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued OPPRS Plan financial report, which can be located at
www.ok.gov/OPPRS/.

Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description — The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits (OPEB) for retired employees
and their dependents through the City of Norman Postretirement Medical Plan (the Plan), a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The benefits, coverage levels, employee contributions and
employer contributions are governed by the City and can be amended by the City through its personnel
manual and union contracts.

Benefits Provided — The City provides postretirement healthcare benefits to its retirees. The Plan covers
all current retirees who elected postretirement medical coverage through the City and future retired
general employees, police officers and firefighters.

All healthcare benefits are provided through the City’s self insured health plan. The benefit levels are
the same as those afforded to active employees. Benefits include general inpatient and outpatient
medical services and prescriptions. General employees are eligible for membership in the Plan if they
retire from the City with eight years of service and with age and service totaling 70 points. Police
officers and firefighters are eligible for benefits under the Plan if they retire from the City with 20 years
of service. Coverage for dependants can continue upon the death of the retiree. Spouses of employees
who die in active service eligible for benefits can receive coverage.

Membership — At July 1, 2019, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 52
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 0

Active employees 695
Total 747
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Funding Policy — The plan participants are responsible for paying the full cost of their medical premium
and the City is responsible for the claims and expenses in excess of participant contributions. As of June
30, 2020, no assets have been accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement
75. The net claims and expenses paid by the City are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB — At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of $8,762,331. The total OPEB
liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, the total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2019 calculated based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions and was then
projected forward to the measurement date. No acturarial experience study has been performed.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $253,136. At June 30, 2020,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience § 718,074 § 1,610,759
Change in assumptions or other inputs 265,615 1,949,868
Total $ 083,680 § 3,560,627

At June 30, 2020, amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources totaling $2,576,938 related to OPEB will be recognized as a (reduction) or increase in
OPEB expense as follows:

2021 $ (474,225)
2022 (474,225)
2023 (474,225)
2024 (530,566)
2025 (554,714)
Thereafter (68.983)
$(2,576,938)

Actuarial Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuations was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:
Acturial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method
Level percent or level dollar Level percent

Closed, open, or layered periods Open
Amortization period at July 1, 2019 30 years
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Amortization growth rate 2.50%

Inflation 2.20%

Discount rate for valuing liabilities 2.21%, based on the Bond Buyer 20 year General
Obligation [ndex

Healthcare cost trend rates 8.4%/8.4% for non-Medicare/Medicare claims

in 2019, gradually decreasing to an ultimate rate of
3.7%/3.7% for 2073 and beyond. 15.9% for dental
claims in 2019 and 3.9% afterward

Mortality rates for AFSCME and non-union participants: Pub-2010
General mortality tables for employees, retirees and
contingent survivors, projected generationally using
scale MP-2019. For FOP and IAAF participants:
Pub-2010 Safety mortality tables for employees,
retirees and contingent survivors, projected
generationally using scale MP-2019.

Changes in Total

OPEB Liability

Balance, beginning of year, July 1, 2019 $ 11,505,478
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 382,009

Interest on total OPEB Liability 345,352

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (1,929,650)

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (1,359,626)

Benefit payments (181,232)
Net changes (2,743,147)
Balance, end of year, June 30, 2020 $ 8,762,331

Sensitivity of the City's Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The City’s total
OPEB liability has been calculated using a discount rate of 2.21%. The following presents the
City’s total OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the
current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
Total OPEB liability $ 9,709,434 § 8,762,331 § 7,918,928

Sensitivity of the City's Toral OPEB Liability to Changes in the current healthcare cost trend
rates — The City’s total OPEB liability has been calculated using a current healthcare cost trend
rate (see assumptions). The following presents the City’s total OPEB liability calculated using a
current healthcare cost trend rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the current rate.
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1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability $ 7,636,123 § 8,762,331 § 10,114,799

Guaranty Deposits - At June 30, 2020, the guaranty deposit accounts of the City included the following
deposit liabilities:

Governmental activities:

Oil and gas drilling escrow $239,600
Site improvements 6,535,569
Contractor’s escrow 107,323
Park improvement 8,615
Court fines and bond deposits 46,554
Others 316.069

Total governmental activities $7.253,730

Business-type activities:

Utility deposits $1.684,983

The above liabilities and related cash and cash equivalents have been presented as restricted assets in
both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Long-Term Debt

Q.

General Obligation Bonds - General obligation bonds have been approved by the voters and issued
by the City for various municipal improvements. These bonds are required to be fully paid within
25 years from the date of issue and are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

Bonds, backed by property taxes, whose proceeds are dedicated to streets, rights-of-way, and
limited access facilities, together with outstanding judgments against the City, are limited in total
by State statute to 10 percent of the net assessed valuation of taxable property in the City. At
June 30, 2020, the net assessed valuation approximated $1,073,000,000 or $1 billion. The City
had no such bonds outstanding at June 30, 2020. There is no such limit on the issuance of other
types of general obligation bonds.

General obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:
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$20,050,000 2012D General Obligation bonds (publicly traded), due in annual

installments of $1,055,000 to $1,060,000 beginning December 1, 2014 through

December 1, 2032 at interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 3.0% (for various street

reconstruction projects) $ 13,720,000

$22,525,000 2015 General Obligation bonds (publicly traded), due in annual

installments of $1,185,000 to $1,195,000 beginning June 1, 2017 through June 1,

2035 at interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 4.00% (for various street

reconstruction projects) 17,785,000

$7,775,000 2016A General Obligation bonds (publicly traded), due in annual

installments of $365,000 to $795,000 beginning June 1, 2017 through July 1, 2027

at interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% (for refunding of the City's Series

2005A and 2007A Combined Purpose General Obligation Bonds) 4,700,000

$10,000,000 2019A General Obligation bonds (publicly traded), due in annual
installments of $5,000,000 beginning June 1, 2021 through June 1, 2022 at an
interest rate of 2.5% (for various street reconstruction projects) 10,000,000

$20,000,000 2019B General Obligation bonds (publicly traded), due in annual
installments of $1,050,000 to $1,100,000 beginning June 1, 2021 through June 1,

2039 at interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.0% (for various street reconstruction
projects) 20,000,000

Total general obligation bonds $ 66,205,000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 5,080,000 § 1,884,397 § 10,964,397
2022 9,085,000 1,654,097 10,739,097
2023 4,085,000 1,399,847 5,484,847
2024 4,085,000 1,278,547 5,363,547
2025 4,080,000 1,157,246 5,237,246
2026 - 2030 17,185,000 4,115,352 21,300,352
2031 -2035 14,355,000 1,812,444 16,167,444
2036 - 2039 4,250,000 321,000 4,571,000
Total $ 66,205,000 § 13,622,930 $ 79,827,930

Revenue Bonds - Revenue Bonds outstanding consist of debt issued by the NUA. The bonds are not
indebtedness of the State of Oklahoma or of the City, but are obligations payable solely from
resources of the NUA.,

The revenue bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

$2,315,000 Norman Municipal Authority, Recreation Facilities Revenue

Bonds, Series 2002 (publicly traded), due in annual installments of

$75,000 to $195,000 from June 1, 2004 through June 1, 2022 at interest

rates from 3.5% to 6.125% $ 375,000

Total revenue bonds $ 375.000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue notes/bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 180,000 3 22,969 § 202,969
2022 195,000 11,944 206,944
Total b 375.000 3 34913 409,913

The Municipal Revenue Bonds Series 2002 ($2,315,000) are collateralized by the revenues from
the operation of the Westwood facility and room tax revenue collected by the City as defined in the
bond indenture. Proceeds were used to complete capital project improvements to the golf course
property. As stated above, the bonds are payable solely from Westwood facility operations and
room tax collections and are payable through 2022. Annual principal and interest payments on the
bonds are expected to require approximately 12 percent of net revenues. The total principal and
interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $409,913. Principal and interest paid for the current
year was $203,381. Total Westwood revenues and room tax collections were $3,570,970 for the
current year.
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Certain of the bonds may be called for redemption prior to maturity at the option of NUA in
accordance with the redemption terms stated in the bond indentures. In the event of a default, the
bonds shall become due and payable on demand in an amount equal to the principal outstanding
plus all interest accrued thereon and which will accrue thereon the date of payment, provided upon
written concurrence of all the Credit Facility Providers, if any.

Notes Payable - Notes payable as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

$17,505,000 Norman Utilities Authority, Utility Revenue Notes, Refunding

Series 2015 (direct placement), due in annual installments of $730,000 to

$1,315,000 from November 1, 2015 to November 1, 2026, at an interest rate

of2.13% 8,925,000

$22,825,000 Norman Municipal Authority Revenue Note, Taxable Series

2015 (direct placement), due in annual payments ranging from $900,000 to

$1,185,000 beginning September 1, 2016 through March 1, 2027. The loan

has a 2.33% interest rate. 15,270,000

$43,160,000 Norman Municipal Authority Revenue Note, Taxable Series

2015B (direct placement), due interest annual payments ranging from

$500,000 to $5,845,000 beginning January 1, 2017 through January 1,

2029. The loan has a 2.98% interest rate. 39,260,000

$30,950,000 Norman Municipal Authority Revenue Note, Taxable Series

2017 (direct placement), due in annual payments ranging from $400,000 to

$3,450,000 beginning January 1, 2018 through July 1, 2030. The loan has a

3.00% interest rate. 28,950,000

$9,380,000 Norman Utilities Authority Revenue Note, Refunding Series

2016, due in annual installments ranging from $190,000 to $755,000

beginning September 1, 2016 through September 1, 2030. The loan has a

2.23% interest rate. 7,160,000

$6,105,000 Norman Municipal Authority Revenue Note, Taxable Series

2017B (direct placement), due in annual payments ranging from $490,000

to $655,000 beginning June 1, 2018 through December 1, 2022. The loan

has a 2.16% interest rate, 3,195,000
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Authorized, but not issued, $8,250,000 Norman Tax Increment Finance

Authority Norman University North Park Project Plan Tax Apportionment

Revenue Note, Series 2011 (direct placement), due in annual installments

beginning July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2031, at interest rates not to

exceed 8%. -

Authorized, but not issued, $8,250,000 Norman Tax Increment Finance
Authority Norman University North Park Project Plan Revenue Note,
Series 2011 (direct placement), due in annual installments beginning July 1,
2012 through June 30, 2031, at interest rates not to exceed §%.

Total notes payable § 102,760,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for direct placement notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 8,938,964 § 2,699,857 $§ 11,638,821
2022 9,579,124 2,495,341 12,074,465
2023 10,514,318 2,269,782 12,784,100
2024 11,314,548 2,013,756 13,328,304
2025 12,294,812 1,730,921 14,025,733
2026 — 2030 54,264,246 4,084,486 58,348,732
2031 -2035 8,021,202 274,259 8,295,461
2036 — 2040 4,332,786 87,040 4,419,826
Less unfunded notes * (16.500,000) - (16,500.000)
Total $ 102,760,000 $ 15655442 § 118.,415.442

Certain of the bonds may be called for redemption prior to maturity at the option of NUA/NMA in
accordance with the redemption terms stated in the bond indentures. In the event of a default, the
bonds shall become due and payable on demand in an amount equal to the principal outstanding
plus all interest accrued thereon and which will accrue thereon the date of payment, provided upon
written concurrence of all the Credit Facility Providers, if any.
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d.  Oklahoma Water Resource Board (OWRB) Notes Payble — OWRB notes payable as of June 30,
2020 are as follows:

$4,964,024 Clean Water SRF direct borrowing loan payable to the OWRB

due in annual installments ranging between $212,595 and $349,740

beginning September 15, 2013 through March 15,2031, The loan has a

2.91% interest rate. $ 3,404,543

$50,300,000 Clean Water SRF direct borrowing loan payable to the OWRB
due in annual installments ranging from $1,410,000 to $3,880,000
beginning March 15, 2015 and ending September 15, 2029. The loan has a
1.75% interest rate with a .5% administration fee. As of June 30, 2020 an
additional $7,785,168 was available for future drawdowns.

26,138,380
Authorized, but not fully issued, $31,000,000 Drinking Water SRF direct
borrowing loan payable to the OWRB due in annual payments ranging from
$1,140,000 to $1,935,000 beginning October 1, 2019 through October 1,
2039. The loan has a 2.82% interest rate. As of June 30, 2020 an
additional $2,995,607 was available for future drawdowns. 26,454,393
$12,000,000 Drinking Water direct borrowing loan payable to the OWRB
due in annual payments ranging from $300,000 to $865,000 beginning
October 1, 2019 through October 1, 2038. The loan has an interest rate
ranging from 3.2% to 5.2%. 11,700,000
Total OWRB loans payable $ 67,697,316
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2021 § 5060950 § 2,018,287 § 7,079,237
2022 5,193,706 2,020,887 7,214,593
2023 5,331,693 1,886,239 7,217,932
2024 5,464,723 1,743,045 7,207,768
2025 5,623,379 1,595,594 7,218,973
2026 - 2030 28,546,438 5,640,019 34,186,457
2031-2035 12,007,202 2,791,359 14,798,561
2036 —2040 11,250,000 815,599 12,065,599
Less unfunded notes * (10,780.775) - (10,780.775)
Total $ 67697316 $ 18,511.029 $ 86,208,345
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Applicability of Federal Arbitrage Regulations — Debt issuances of the City and Authorities issued
after the Tax Reform Act of 1986 are subject to the federal arbitrage regulations. The arbitrage
rebate regulations require that all earnings from the investment of gross proceeds of a bond issue in
excess of the amount that could have been earned had the yield on the investment been equal to the
yield on the bonds be remitted to the federal government. These carry strict penalties for
noncompliance including taxability of interest retroactive to the date of the issue. The City’s
management believes the City is in compliance with these rules and regulations.

* - Relates to $31,000,000 Drinking Water SRF loan and $16,500,000 of the Norman TIF Notes
Payable.
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities — L.ong-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was

as follows:

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds
Issuance premium/
(discount)

Total bonds payable
Sales tax revenue notes
Notes payable
Liability for incurred claims
Net OPEB obligation
Net pension liability
Compensated absences

Government activity
long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premium
and (discount)

Total bonds payable
Notes payable

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premium
and (discount)

Total notes payable
OWRB loans payable
Compensated absences

Business-type activity
long-term liabilities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 69,230,000 $ - (3,025,000) $ 66,205,000 $ 9,080,000
1,803,501 - (196,446) 1,607,055 -
71,033,501 - (3,221,446) 67,812,055 9,080,000
87,645,000 - (4,165,000) 83,480,000 5,015,000
4,420,000 - (1,225,000) 3,195,000 1,255,000
2,500,122 12,877,067 (12,377,067) 3,000,122 1,200,000
11,505,478 727,361 (3,470,508) 8,762,331 -
46,271,359 - (5,975,040) 40,296,319 -
8412,716 6,315,940 (5,777,359) 8,951,297 653,312
$ 231,788,176 $ 19,920,368 $ (36,211,420) § 215497,124 § 17,203,312
$ 545,000 $ - (170,000) $ 375,000 $ 180,000
(9,311) 3,104 - (6,207) -
535,689 3,104 (170,000) 368,793 180,000
19,667,812 - (3,565,000) 16,102,812 1,895,000
(14,262) 1,782 - (12,480) -
19,653,550 1,782 (3,565,000) 16,090,332 1,895,000
66,562,455 6,446,537 (5,311,676) 67,697,316 5,000,950
1,378,965 1,009,358 (1,005,208) 1,383,115 112,470
$ 88,130,659 §$§ 7,460,781 $ (10,051,884) $§ 85,539,556 $ 7,248,420

For governmental activities, liability for incurred claims, compensated absences, net pension liability
and net OPEB obligation are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

FUND BALANCE

The following table shows the fund balance classifications as shown on the governmental funds
balance sheet as of June 30, 2020:
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FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Restricted:
Debt service reserve
Arts and humanities
Grant activities
Bond capital projects
Other capital projects
Seizures
CLEET
Transit & Parking
Public safety
Committed:
Economic stablization
Assigned:
Other capital projects
Grant activities
Orders on purchase

Unassigned:

Total fund balances

Other Total
Public Safety Debt Capital Norman Governmental Governmental
General Sales Tax Service Projects Forward Funds Funds
$ 14,065 $ - $ - $ - § - § - $ 14,065
- - 7,200,737 - - - 7,200,737
- - - - - (250,147) (250,147)
- - - (218,847) - 4,972,844 4,753,997
- - - 40,095,739 17,101,144 - 57,196,883
- - - 36,326,858 21,447,977 1,165,240 58,940,075
- - - - - 443,776 443,776
. B, . - - 3,467 3,467
- . . - - 1,241,477 1,241,477
- 10,950,723 - - - - 10,950,723
3,889,176 - - - - - 3,889,176
- - - 2,633,011 1,955,814 - 4,588,825
- - - - - 624,911 624 911
2.849,57] - - - - - 2,849,571
10,836,506 - - - - - 10,836,506
$ 17,589,318 $ 10,950,723 $ 7,200,737 5 78,836,761 b $ 8,201,568 $163.284,042

40,504,935

On June 28, 2011, the City adopted ordinance O-1011-58 changing the City’s reserve policy. The
ordinance establishes that the General Fund will have an unappropriated reserve of at least three
percent (3%) of annually budgeted expenditures, in addition to an appropriated emergency reserve of
one percent (1%) of annually budgeted expenditures. In addition, the ordinance establishes the Net
Revenue Stabilization Fund (i.e., “Rainy Day Fund™) which has a targeted balance of not less than
four and a half percent (4.5%) but not more than six percent (6%) of annually budgeted General Fund
expenditures. Further, expenditures of the reserved amounts may occur only when specific
circumstances exist. As of June 30, 2020 the Rainy Day Fund had a balance of $3,889,176.
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is self-insured against the following risks:
e  Employee health claims to a maximum liability of $250,000 per employee per year.
s  Workers compensation claims.
e  Unemployment benefits.

e General liability and property damage, except for buildings and contents and employee surety
bonds for which the City has purchased commercial insurance.

Employee health claims in excess of the $250,000 limit are covered by insurance. The City’s unpaid
claims liability of $3,000,122 reported at June 30, 2020 is based on the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the
financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. However, events could
occur that would cause the estimate for unpaid claims liability to differ materially in the near term. The
claims liability for health claims incurred but not reported is estimated by management using a three-
month claims lag analysis. These amounts are recorded as a current liability within both the
government-wide and governmental fund financial statements. The claims liability for workers
compensation claims and judgments is estimated using legal counsel’s opinion of probable outcome of
litigation plus an estimate of claims experience for incurred but unreported claims. These amounts are
recorded as long-term liabilities within the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these
amounts are recorded in governmental funds when they become due and payable. As of June 30, 2020,
no liability has been recognized in the governmental fund financial statements. There are no allocated or
unallocated claim adjustment expenditures/expenses included in the liability for unpaid claims.

At June 30, 2020, the City maintained commercial insurance coverage for building and contents and
employee theft. In the past three years, the City has had no losses that exceeded commercial insurance
coverage. Changes in the reported liability are as follows:

Current Year

Balance at Claims and Balance
Beginning Changes in Claim at End
of Year Estimates Payments of Year
Fiscal year 2019 $ 2,500,122 $ 11,068,146 $(11,068.146) $ 2,500,122
Fiscal year 2020 $ 2,500,122 § 12.877,067 $(12,377.067) § 3,000,122

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The City operates various segments within its enterprise funds. Condensed financial statement
information for these segments for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:
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Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance
Due from other funds
Interest

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Payroll payable

Accrued interest payable

Guaranty deposits

Revenue bonds payable

Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Norman Municipal Authority
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Sanitation

Westwood Park Services Total
$ 388,863 § 9,392,276 9,781,139
1,914 420,941 422,855
- 6,069,869 6,069,869
- 958,942 958,942
- 80,807 80,807
- 26,289 26,289
390,777 16,949,124 17,339,901
230,997 - 230,997
7,017,641 10,491,921 17,509,562
7,248,638 10,491,921 17,740,559
7,639,415 27,441,045 35,080,460
202,024 503,707 705,731
110,628 133,039 243,667
1,914 - 1,914
- 420,941 420,941
180,000 - 180,000
9,023 32,471 41,494
503,589 1,090,158 1,593,747
290,728 366,849 657,577
794,317 1,457,007 2,251,324
6,642,641 10,491,921 17,134,562
230,997 - 230,997
(28,540) 15,492,117 15,463,577
b 6,845,098 § 25,984,038 32,829,136

continued



Norman Municipal Authority

Sanitation
Westwood Park Services Total
Charges for services and goods, net 1,632,229 15,095,368 16,727,597
Other 5,641 14,978 20,619
Total operating revenues 1,637,870 15,110,346 16,748,216
Operati_ng_ expenses 1,898,578 11,430,258 13,328,836
Depreciation 172,731 1,983,162 2,155,893
Total operating expenses 2,071,309 13,413,420 15,484,729
Operating income (loss) (433,439) 1,696,926 1,263,487
Investment earnings 6,315 385,955 392,270
Interest expense (36,877) (39,401) (76,278)
Miscellaneous income (expense) 16,257 132,129 148,386
(expenses) (14,305) 478,683 464,378
Income before capital
contributions and transfers (447,744) 2,175,609 1,727,865
Transters, net 602,561 - 602,561
Change in net position 154,817 2,175,609 2,330,426
Total net position - beginning 6,690,281 23,808,429 30,498,710
Total net position - ending 6,845,098 25,984,038 32,829,136
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities (206,776) 4,395,661 4,188,885
Noncapital financing activities 602,561 - 602,561
Capital and related financing activities (265,869) . (3,572,881) (3,838,750)
Investing activities 6,366 4,238,549 4,244 915
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 485,492 4,751,888 5,237,380
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 621,774 $ 9,813,217 $ 10,434,991
concluded

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation - The City is party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental

operations. Management and management’s counsel do not believe these legal proceedings will have a
material adverse impact on the affected funds of the City. However, events could occur in the near term
that would cause these estimates to change materially. Resulting judgments will be paid from ad
valorem taxes to be received over a three-year period. At June 30, 2020, the City maintained a litigation
reserve, including judgments that have been awarded but not yet paid, of approximately $649,000.

Federal Grants - In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various federal
agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of
which is to insure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Management does not
believe any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits will be material.
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Lease Commitments - The City has entered into a number of operating leases, all of which contain
cancellation provisions that are subject to annual appropriations by the City Council. For the year ended
June 30, 2020, rent expenditures approximated $606,000 for all operating leases. These expenditures
were made primarily from the General Fund.

Water Revenues - The City entered into a contract with the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy
District (the “District™) in 1961 (subsequently modified in 1963) for the purchase of water and operation
of water facilities. In general, the contract provides for reimbursing the District for costs of providing
the City with water from Lake Thunderbird. The contract is effective for a term of fifty years beginning
with the first calendar year during which water was used by the City (1965). During the year ended
June 30, 2020, the City paid the District $1,432,049.

Construction In Progress - Construction in progress is authorized by actions of the City Council
(govemning body). A summary of construction in progress as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Total
Construction Total Remaining
In Progress Project To Complete

General Government $ 46,139,237 § 171,146,734 $ 125,007,497
Norman Municipal Authority:

Sanitation 536,582 4,736,857 4,200,275
Norman Utilities Authority:

Water Fund 56,264,388 81,038,434 24,774,046

Wastewater Fund 2,443,520 13.494.554 11,051,034

3 105383727 $ 270,416,579 $ 165,032,852

The City also contributes to certain State and Federal aid projects which are administered by the State of
Oklahoma Department of Highway. The City is billed by the Highway Department for these projects at
various stages of completion, subject to Federal audits of the project costs.

Pandemic — As a result of the spread of the SARS-CoV-2 virus and the incidence of COVID-19,
economic uncertainties have arisen which may negatively affect the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows, where applicable, of the City. The duration of these uncertainties, and the
ultimate financial effects cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

Encumbrances — As discussed in note three above, budgetary information, budgetary basis of
accounting, encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary
control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. At June 30, 2020 the
amount of encumbrances expected to be honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year were
as follows:

General fund $ 2,849,571
Public safety sales tax fund 2,753,085
Capital projects fund 12,340,732
Norman forward fund 7,825,882
Nonmajor governmental funds 968,924
Total $ 26,738,194

ST



10.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 1, 2020, the City sold $11,250,000 in general obligation bonds. The bonds are due in various
amounts from $590,000 to $630,000 beginning August 2022 through August 2040.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The following accounting standards have been recently issued and will be adopted as applicable by the
City in future years.

GASB Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities (GASB 84): GASB 84 provides for greater consistency
and comparability by establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as
fiduciary activities and clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary
activities. This statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (effective for the
City’s June 30, 2021, year-end).

GASB Statement No. 87 — Leases (GASB 87): GASB 87 addresses the recognition of certain lease assets
and liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognizing inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing
the relevance and consistency of information about governments® leasing activity. This statement is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2022 year-end).

GASB Statement No. 89 — Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period: The primary objectives of this statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of
information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify
accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This statement establishes
accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. It also
reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus,
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a
basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2022
year-end).

GASB Statement No 90 — Majority Equity Interest — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No.

61: The primary objectives of this statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of
reporting on a government’s major equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the
relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The requirements for this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (effective for the City’s
June 30, 2021 year-end).

GASB Statement No. 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations: The primary objectives of this statement are to
provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in
practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit
debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This statement achieves those objectives by clarifying
the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation, establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a
liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit
debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are
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effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2023
year-end).

GASB Statement No. 92 — Omnibus 2020: The objectives of GASB Statement No. 92 are to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application
of certain GASB Statements. GASB Statement No. 92 addresses a variety of topics and includes specific
provisions about the following:

¢ The effective date of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-
3, Leases, for interim financial reports

¢ Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) plan

e The applicability of GASB Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and
No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as
amended, to reporting assets accumulated for postemployment benefits

s The applicability of certain requirements of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
postemployment benefit arrangements

¢ Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to AROs in a government acquisition

¢ Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or
excess insurers

o Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative
literature

e Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments

GASB Statement No. 92 is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 (effective for the
City’s June 30, 2022, year-end).

GASB Statement No. 93 - Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates: Some governments have entered into
agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR)-—
most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As aresult of global reference rate reform,
LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting governments to
amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates, by
either changing the reference rate or adding or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.

The objective of GASB Statement No. 93 is to address those and other accounting and financial
reporting implications that result from the replacement of an IBOR. GASB Statement No. 93 achieves
that objective by:

» Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting
termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging
derivative instrument’s variable payment

e Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to
replace the reference rate
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e Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by
itself, affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is
probable

e Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of
the effectiveness of an interest rate swap

» Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an
interest rate swap

e Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in GASB Statement No. 53, as
amended

e Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in GASB Statement No. 87, as
amended, for certain lease contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate
upon which variable payments depend

The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods
ending after June 15, 2021 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2022, year-end). All other requirements of
GASB Statement No. 93 are effective for reporting periods beginning after

June 15, 2020 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2021, year-end).

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements: The primary objective of GASB Statement No. 94 is to improve financial reporting by
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used
in GASB Statement No. 94, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts
with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying
control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset
(the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some
PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which GASB defines in GASB
Statement No. 94 as a PPP in which 1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third
parties; 2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator
is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates
that can be charged for the services; and 3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the
service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. GASB Statement No. 94 is
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2023,
year-end).

GASB Statement No. 96 - Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements — This statement
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). GASB Statement No. 96
1) defines a SBITA; 2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an
intangible asset-~and a corresponding subscription liability; 3) provides the capitalization criteria for
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and 4) requires
note disclosures regarding a SBITA. GASB Statement No. 96 is effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2022 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2023, year-end).

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
Jor Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 - The primary objectives
of GASB Statement No. 97 are to 1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of
fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a
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governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would
perform; 2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans,
defined contribution OPEB plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans
(other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and
3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet
the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.

The requirements of GASB Statement No. 97 that 1) exempt primary governments that perform the
duties that a governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the
same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are
financially accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or
other employee benefit plans and 2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph
7 of GASB Statement No. 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are
administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of GASB Statement No. 67 or
paragraph 3 of GASB Statement No. 74, respectively, are effective immediately. The remaining
requirements of GASB Statement No. 97 are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2021 (effective for the City’s June 30, 2022, year-end).

The effect of these statements on the City has not been determined but could have a significant impact
on its overall net position.
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Changes of Assumptions:

For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, certain changes in assumptions, the the OFPRS Plan, were made based on the
Plan’s most recent actuarial experience study covering the July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2018 period. In addition to updates for
retirement rates and termination rates to better fit experience, the following significant assumptions were made:

Previous New
Changes in Assumptions Assumption Assumption

Economic Assumption Changes:

Salary Scale Rates 3.5% t0 9.0% 2.75% to 10.5%

Price Inflation 3.00% 2.75%

COLA Basis (Baker Case Group Only) 3.00% 2.75%
Demographic Assumption Changes:

Termination Rates 3.0% to .40% 5.0% to 1.00%

Disability Rates 0.05% to 9.00% 0.10% to 8.00%

Retirement Rates 10.00% to 100% 5.00% to 100%

Mortality Table Assumption Changes

Previous Assumptions:
Active Employees Pre-retirement: RP-2000 with Blue Collar Healthy Combined with general mortality improvement

using Scale AA
Retired Members: RP-2000 with Blue Collar Healthy Combined with generational mortality using Scale AA
Disabled Members: RP-2000 with Blue Collar Healthy Combined

New Assumptions:
Active Employees Pre-retirement: RP-2010 Public Safety Table with general mortality improvement using Scale MP-

2018
Retired Members: RP-2010 Public Safety Below Median Table with generational mortality using Scale MP-2018

Disabled Members: RP-2010 Public Safety Disabled Table set forward two years

- 80 -



Iﬂwl

:opew o10m vondwnsse ur sa5uryd JuBHIUIIS
Suimoyjo} ay3 “eous11adxa 31J 10119q 01 $2JB1 UOIRUIULIY] PUE $3JR1 JUSWIAINAI 10 sojepdn 0) uonippe uj “pourad §10z ‘o€ dunf 01 7102 ‘1 Ajnr oY) Su1oa0o Apnis
sousLIddxa [BLIBNIOR JUSDAL JSOW S UB[J Y] UO Paseq Opewl alom ‘Ue]J SHAJO Y3 01 ‘suondwnsse ul sagueyo UIedd ‘107 ‘1 AN SurumSaq 18oA [82S1) oY) JO]

:suonduwnssy jo saguey)

"Jow drom sjustwaanbar ANpqiBis (B J1 05 €S JO 100[) B puB (0| Jo ded ' 0F 100[qns 11jousq JUSWDIIIAI [BNUUR SSOIT $,9011391 B JO 94,00 P2[enbs juswiied
siy L “JuswAed J1jousq JusURULIRA-UOU “dWI-AUO B Ylim S2AI1AI UB[d SYdJO Isowr opiaoid o) possed sem g€ [[1F 9SNOH UOISSOs dAR[SITO} 8107 9Ys Suringg

SSULID ], JJAUag Ul saguwvy))

"J[QBITIRAR J0A 10U SI BIRp JBOA ()] 9snedsq pajuesald aIe 070z PUB 10T ‘810T “L10T ‘910Z ‘S10T 189X [eosly A[U() :3INPayds 01 910N

o€l %€l %€l %£1 841 % €1 [1oIAed pateao2 Jo a8riuaniad e se suonNgLIuO))
SOPESL'EIS TOLTORTIS +SE6SETIS OTIP90°TIS SIT8I6 TIS HLETLITIS [1014ed paioa0d sAI0)
- § - g - g - $ - $ - S {ss00x0) ASUdldTjop uoNNgLIUO))
6L8LSLT  €9EW99TT  9IL°909°T  SEE'BISTT  SETOSS'T 60V TSK uonnqLyuod

paxznbal AJ[emornuOo2 9y 0} UOTIR[SI U SUONNJLIU0))

6L8°L8L T § €9EF99°T § 91L909°T $§ S££'895°T S SETOSS'T §  60F°TSHT § uonnqrnuod pannbar Afjemaenuo)

0coe 6102 8102 Zioe glo0e 5102

0202 ‘0S aunf papug Jeaj
(SHddO) woysks Juswaiey PUE UOISUSY 991|0d EWOEIO
suonNqLIUoY M1 8u} JO 9INPaYdS

VINOHVIMO ‘NVINHON 40 ALID 3HL



Changes in Assumptions

Previous
Assumption

New
Assumption

Economic Assumption Changes:
Salary Scale Rates
Price Inflation
Interest Credit on DOP Balances
Real Wage Growth
COLA Basis (Baker Case Group Only)

Demagraphic Assumption Changes:
Severity of Disability Aware Percentage

Actuarial Assumption Changes:

Amortization of UAAL when in Surplus
(Funded over 100%)

Amortization of UAAL when in Deficit
(Funded under 100%)

4.5% to 17.0%
3.00%

7.75%

N/A

3.00%

50.00%

When the UAAL is a surplus,
over an open 30-year period

3.5% to 10%
2.75%
11.00%
0.75%
3.50%

75.00%

it is amortized

When the UAAL is a deficit, it is amortized

over an open five-year period
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2018 2019 2020

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost $ 363,920 § 417,331 $ 382,009

Interest 423,574 387,327 345,352

Differences between expected and actual experience 965,685 - -

Changes of economic/demographic gains or losses - - (1,929,650)

Changes of assumptions or other inputs (1,095,942) 426,593 (1,359,626)

Benefit payments (731,674) (725,099) (181,232)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (74,437) 506,152 (2,743,147)
City's Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 11,073,763 10,999,326 11,505,478
City's Total OPEB Liability - Ending 10,999,326 11,505,478 8,762,331
Covered Payroll $49,743,998 $ 49,142,598 $ 47,776,487
City's Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 22.11% 23.41% 18.34%

Notes to Schedule:

This schedule is presented as of the measurement date for the fiscal year and is intended to show a
10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.

Changes in Assumptions:

For each year presented, assumptions made for mortality rates and discount rates are updated using
current year estimates
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Taxes:
Sales taxes

Franchise fees
State use taxes

Total taxes

Licenses and permits:
Licenses
Permits

Total licenses
and permits

State Shared Revenues:
Alcoholic beverage
Cigarette
State motor fuel and vehicle

registration

Total intergovern-
mental revenues

Charges for services:
Zoning & subdivision
Public safety
Health
Recreation fees
Credit card confenience fees
911 emergency fees

Total charges
for services

Fines and forfeitures:
Police court fines
Miscellaneous forfeitures

Total fines and
forfeits

Investment carnings

Other revenue:
Contributions
Rents and royalties
Cost allocations
Sale of fixed assets
Miscellaneous revenues

Total other
revenue

Total revenues

Original Revised

Budget Revisions Budget
44,824,850 - 44,824,850
7,806,785 - 7,806,785
4,788,276 - 4,788,276
57,419,911 - 57,419,911
552,366 - 552,366
628,153 - 628,153
1,180,519 - 1,180,519
327,480 - 327,480
884,388 - 884,388
1,201,083 - 1,201,083
2,412951 - 2,412,951
129,568 - 129,568
430,214 - 430,214
222,099 - 222,099
655,793 - 655,793
679,730 - 679,730
35,323 - 35,323
2,152,727 - 2,152,727
1,869,544 - 1,869,544
1,869,544 - 1,869,544
178,500 - 178,500
28,280 10,500 38,780
354,624 - 354,624
9,943,917 - 9,943,917
164,630 - 164,630
1,360,604 142,838 1,503,442
11,852,055 153,338 12,005,393
77,066,207 153,338 77,219,545
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Expenditures

Encum-
brances

Variance-
Positive
Actual {Negative)

40,182,876 (4,641,974)
6,556,326 (1,250,459)

6,281,369 1,493,093
53,020,571 (4,399.340)

640,907 88,541
501,218 (126,935)
1,142,125 (38,394)

505,920 178,440
702,319 (182,069)
1,075,129 (125,954)
2,283,368 (129,583)

132,839 3,271
360,732 (69,482)
120,656 (101,443)
333,221 (322,572)
515,612 (164,118)
273,933 238,610
1,736,993 (415,734)
1,778,279 (91,265)

15,330 15,330
1,793,609 (75,935)
17,163 (161,337)
13,442 (25,338)
173,300 (181,324)
9,234,708 (709,209)
66,875 (97,755)
908,647 (594,795)
10,396,972 (1,608.421)
70,390,801 (6,828,744)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

General government:
City council
City manager's office
Community relations
Communications
City clerk's office
Municipal court
Legal administration
Information Technology
Human resource admin
Safety administration
Building services admin
Custodial services
Building repair services
Human rights commission
Children's rights commission
Social & voluntary services
Norman public library
Firehouse art center
Historical museum
Sooner theatre
Juvenile services
Employee training
Employee assitance program
Special studies & contributions
Munigcipal elections
Sister cities program
Holiday decorations

Total general government

Planning:
Planning commission
Historic district commission
Greenbelt commission
Planning administration
Geographic information
Development services
Revitalization
Current planning

Total planning

Variance-

Original Revised Encum- Positive

Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual {Negative)
2,442,025 § (1,154,134) § 1,287.891 § 490,462 $ 23,942 § 514,404 $ 773,487
443,761 (8,058) 435,703 416,816 1,487 418,303 17,400
280,259 (90,852) 189,407 188,445 - 188,445 962
192,717 152,455 345,172 287,514 24,329 311,843 33,329
615,904 (26,927) 588,977 565,517 332 565,849 23,128
1,308,443 (98,556) 1,209,887 1,151,029 13,333 1,164,362 45,525
1,286,725 (65,809) 1,220,916 1,077,851 3,038 1,080,889 140,027
2,591,651 307,211 2,898,862 2,342,231 183,671 2,525,902 372,960
949,013 (65,131) 883,882 801,373 36,780 838,153 45,729
187,032 22,214 209,246 160,372 5,000 165,372 43,874
132,708 (6,432) 126,276 118,597 - 118,597 7,679
230,574 1,656 232,230 220,843 42,355 263,198 (30,968)
669,317 21,177 690,494 579,651 - 579,651 110,843
230 - 230 210 - 210 20
176 - 176 80 - 80 96
175,000 12,320 187,320 161,055 12,110 173,165 14,155
727,974 (162,553) 565,421 565,420 19,000 584,420 (18,999)
79,308 - 79,308 74,146 - 74,146 5,162
41,067 1 41,068 39,744 - 39,744 1,324
90,761 4,377 95,138 85,922 - 85,922 9,216
40,282 968 41,250 28,973 - 28,973 12,277
3,726 - 3,726 - - - 3,726
29,444 - 29,444 29,400 - 29,400 44
5,000 89,844 94,844 34,513 - 34,513 60,331
82,115 (36,420) 45,695 45,695 - 45,695 -
1,000 - 1,000 - - - 1,000
26,730 (20,000) 6,730 - - ~ 6,730
12,632,942 (1,122,649) 11,510,293 9,465,859 365,377 9,831,236 1,679,057
347 - 347 - - - 347
2,812 35,000 37,812 20,827 14,867 35,694 2,118
490 - 490 - - 490
680,703 (15,474) 665,229 666,424 3,787 670,211 (4,982)
476,615 11,881 488,496 455,650 26,180 481,830 6,666
1,676,245 (7.670) 1,668,575 1,433,083 103,000 1,536,083 132,492
700,377 12,505 712,882 663,096 728 663,824 49,058
214,231 - 214,231 102,812 - 102,812 111,419
3,751,820 36,242 3,788,062 3,341,892 148,562 3,490,454 297,608
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BAS!S)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual {Negative)
City controller:
Finance administration $ 318,108 $ 34617 $ 352,725 $ 339,248 $ 209 $ 339,457 $ 13,268
Accounting services 729,511 11,744 741,255 727,792 865 728,657 12,598
Printing services 240,434 18,142 258,576 218,920 1,491 220,411 . 38,165
Budget services 196,347 (34,245) 162,102 156,906 402 157,308 4,794
Treasury services 788,512 41,272 829,784 822,455 1,714 824,169 5,615
Utility services 1,250,209 98,469 1,348,678 1,297,689 4,774 1,302,463 46,215
Total city controller 3,523,121 169,999 3,693,120 3,563,010 9,455 3,572,463 120,655
Parks and recreation:
Parks board 767 - 767 - - - 767
Mosquito control program 24,177 (24,167) 10 10 - 10 -
Santa Fe Depot 8,471 78 8,549 5,361 234 5,595 2,954
Administration 634,708 25,680 660,388 644,950 - 644,950 15,438
Park maintenance 2,873,090 (60,773) 2,812,317 2,274,521 160,987 2,435,508 376,809
Forestry 199,373 (3,499) 195,874 105,723 52,946 158,669 37,205
Recreation little league 216,067 (182,388) 33,679 (752) - (752) 34,431
Recreation programs 1,540,174 231,738 1,771,912 1,414,776 77,346 1,492,122 279,790
Senior citizens center 173,132 26,945 200,077 196,032 - 196,032 4,045
Total parks & recreation 5,669,959 13,614 5,683,573 4,640,621 291,513 4,932,134 751,439
Public works:
Public works administratic 423,629 57,240 480,869 360,146 38,179 398,325 82,544
Engineering department 1,228,282 25,667 1,253,949 1,092,289 16,728 1,109,017 144,932
Street maintenance 4,091,692 183,516 4,275,208 3,031,021 335,342 3,366,363 908,845
Stormwater drainage 3,075,397 132,734 3,208,131 2,362,898 292,358 2,655,256 552,875
Stormwater quality 455,128 7,304 462,432 379,627 2,928 382,555 79,877
Traffic control 4,186,864 38,188 4,225,052 3,660,364 250,707 3,911,071 313,981
Fleet maintenance admin 466,741 1,344 468,085 421,009 3,463 424,472 43,613
Fleet repair light duty 543,045 12,014 555,059 510,073 6,025 516,098 38,961
Fleet repair heavy duty 782,397 (2,190) 780,207 726,023 12,401 738,424 41,783
Fleet fuel and parts 2,796,582 25,645 2,822,227 2,178,700 215,154 2,393,854 428,373
CNG Station 448,100 41,808 489,908 232,056 40,399 272,435 217,453
Total public works 18,497,857 523,270 19,021,127 14,954,206 1,213,684 16,167,890 2,853,237
Public safety:
Police department admin 983,351 (216,950) 766,401 691,030 26,643 717,673 48,728
Staff services 2,809,655 356,864 3,166,519 2,804,291 207,261 3,011,552 154,967
Criminal investigations 2,636,276 596,004 3,232,280 3,061,938 38,059 3,099,997 132,283
Patrol 11,492,530 314,336 11,806,866 11,328,559 196,205 11,524,764 282,102
Special Investigations 984,523 135,544 1,120,067 1,082,001 42 1,082,043 38,024
Animal control 1,436,009 40,730 1,476,739 1,328,640 44,439 1,373,079 103,660
911 services 2,008,225 (51,972) 1,956,253 1,799,550 142,786 1,942,336 13,917
Fire department admin 674,243 207,559 881,802 860,161 - 860,161 21,641
Training - fire department 327,975 31,068 359,043 214,459 1,824 216,283 142,760
Fire prevention 874,286 14,947 889,233 839,304 1,096 840,400 48,833
Fire suppression 14,074,116 498,955 14,573,071 13,778,294 157,878 13,936,172 636,899
Diaster preparedness servi 187,633 14,106 201,739 186,643 4,747 191,390 10,349
Total public safety 38,488,822 1,941,191 40,430,013 37,974,870 820,980 38,795,850 1,634,163
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 82,564,521 1,561,667 84,126,188  $ 73,940,458  $ 2,849571 76,790,029 7,336,159
(Continued)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expendi-
tures and encumbrances

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:

Norman Utilities
Authority

Capital Projects Fund

Norman Forward Fund

Transit & Parking Fund

UNP TIF Fund

Insurance Fund

Total transfers in

Transfers out:
Westwood Fund
Capital Fund

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund

Transit & Parking Fund

Total transfers out

Net other financing
sources (uses)

Qriginal Revised
Budget Revisions Budget
(5,498,314) (1,408,329) (6,906,643)
1,668,455 - 1,668,455
4,033,931 6,742 4,040,673
187,695 - 187,695
- 1,943,392 1,943,392
- 843,807 843,807
- 64,080 64,080
5,890,081 2,858,021 8,748,102
(575,800) - (575,800)
- (196,312) (196,312)
(1,129,316) - (1,129,316)
- (5,215,823) (5,215,823)
(1,705,116) (5,412,135) (7,117.251)
4,184,965 (2,554,114) 1,630,851
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Variance-
Positive
Actual {Negative)
(6,399,228) 507,415
1,597,453 (71,002)
3,512,432 (528,241)
139,328 (48,367)
2,335,035 391,643
1,074,010 230,203
64,080 -
8,722,338 (25,764)
(280,736) 295,004
- 196,312
(1,522,032) (392,716)
(5,215,823) -
(7,018,591) 98,660
1,703,747 72,896
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original Revised
Budget Revisions Budget
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
sources over (under)
expenditures, encumbrances,
and other uses (1,313,349) (3,962,443) (5,275,792)
Fund balance, July 1,
2019 (Non-GAAP
budgetary basis) 5,740,137 - 5,740,137
Fund balance, June 30,
2020 (Non-GAAP
budgetary basis) $ 4,426,788 $ (3,962,443) 464,345
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Variance-
Positive
(Negative)

580,311

580,311
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual {Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Sales tax $ 9,939,431 5 - $  9,939.431 $ 9,280,292 ] (659,139)
Use tax 840,682 - 840,682 1,046,880 206,198
Total taxes 10,780,113 B 10,780,113 10,327,172 (452,941)
SRO reimbursement-NPS 658,792 - 658,792 492,964 (165,828)
Investment earnings 150,000 - 150,000 100,370 (49,630)
Miscellaneous income - - - - -
Total revenues 11,588,905 - 11,588,905 10,920,506 (668,399)
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Public safety:
Police staff services 50,027 196,287 246,314 $ (139,681) § 185974 46,293 200,021
Police criminal investigations 624,081 90,753 714,834 701,388 - 701,388 13,446
Police patrol 5,346,776 (214,089) 5,132,687 4,736,549 104,865 4,841,414 291,273
SRO - 717,595 717,595 684,018 - 684,018 33,577
911 124,613 12,690 137,303 133,481 - 133,481 3,822
Fleet Heavy Repair 337,005 (241,989) 95,016 58,833 81,763 140,596 (45,580)
Fire suppression 5,171,903 (192,022) 4,979,881 4,506,562 11,724 4,518,286 461,595
Capital projects - 9,876,862 9,876,862 (1,637,010) 2,091,312 454,302 9,422,560
Debt services 2,357,717 - 2,357,717 2,357.675 - 2,357,675 42
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 14,012,122 10,246,087 24,258,209 $ 11,401,815 $ 2,475,638 13,877,453 10,380,756
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances (2,423,217) (10,246,087) (12,669,304) (2,956,947) 9,712,357
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in:
General Fund 1,129,316 - 1,129,316 1,522,032 392,716
Capital Fund 462,943 - 462,943 462,948 b
Net other financing sources 1,592,259 - 1,592,259 1,984,980 392,721
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over (under)
expenditures, encumbrances
and other sources (uses) (830,958) (10,246,087) (11,077,045) (971,967) 10,105,078
Fund balance, July 1,2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 7,408,465 - 7.408,465 7,408,465 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary (basis) $ 6,577,507 $ (10,246,087) $§ (3,068,580) $ 6,436,498 $ 10,105,078
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND AND PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX FUND

Budget Reconciliations - Items required to adjust actual revenues, expenditures, and fund balances reported on the
budgetary basis to those reported within the fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as
follows:

Public Safety
General Sales Tax
Fund Fund
Fund balances - budgetary basis, June 30, 2020 Y 1,044,656 § 6,436,498
Current year encumbrances included in expenditures 2,849,571 2,475,638
Prior year encumbrances outstanding - 277,447
Current year revenue accrual 11,582,695 2,043,345
Current year expenditure accrual (1,776,779) (282,205)
Rainy Day Fund Balance 3,889,175 -
Fund balances - fund financial statements, June 30, 2020 $ 17,589,318 $ 10,950,723
Revenues - budgetary basis $ 70,390,800 § 10,920,506
Current year revenue accrual 11,582,695 2,043,345
Prior year revenue accrual (8,857,289) (1,681,334)
Interest earned within Rainy Day Fund 94,756 -
Revenues - fund financial statements $ 73,210,962 § 11,282,517
Expenditures - budgetary basis $ 76,790,029 $ 13,877,453
Current year encumbrances included in expenditures (2,849,571) (2,475,638)
Prior year encumbrances paid 2,541,165 2,713,954
Current year expenditure accrual 1,776,779 282,205
Prior year expenditure accrual (1,341,276) (223,304)
Expenditures - fund financial statements $ 76,917,126 $ 14,174,670
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

NORMAN ROOM TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
QOriginal Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Hotel/motel tax $ 1,917,152 % - $ 1917152 $ 1,420,789 § (496,363)
Investment earnings 2,640 - 2,640 2,836 196
Total revenues 1,919,792 - 1,919,792 1,423,625 (496,167)
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Public service:
Room tax 1,549,042 351,034 1,900,076 $ 1,430,899 § 108,874 1,539,773 360,303
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 1,549,042 351,034 1,900,076 $ 1,430,899 §$ 108,874 1,539,773 360,303
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures and
encumbrances 370,750 (351,034) 19,716 (116,148)  (135,864)
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out:
Westwood (205,882) - (205,882) (204,641) 1,241
Net other financing
sources (uses) (205,882) - (205,882) (204,641) 1,241
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over (under) expenditures,
encumbrances and other uses 164,868 (351,034) (186,166) (320,789)  (134,623)
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 245,522 245,522 245,522 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ 410,390 $ (351,034 § 59,356 $ (75267 $(134,623)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revigions Budget Expenditures hrances Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Community development
block grant ("CDBG") $ 850,844 $ 1,587 $ 852,431 $ 861,890 $ 9,459
CDBG-DR grant - - - 2,028,424 2,028,424
Home grant 374,974 - 374,974 47,290 (327,684)
COC planning grant - - - 12,088 12,088
Interest - - - 7.109 7,109
Total revenues 1,225,818 1,587 1,227,405 2,956,801 1,729,396
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Public service:
Community development 587,870 235,343 823,213 251,848 46,500 298,348 524 865
CDBG housing 262,974 394,036 657,010 335,715 - 335,713 321,295
CDBG-DR - 3,086,944 3,086,944 (2,944,199) - (2,944,199) 6,031,143
CDBG-CV - 534,636 534,636 2,391 1,774 4,165 530,471
Home grants 374,974 591,264 966,238 60,742 18,833 79,575 886,663
COC planning grants - 12,088 12,088 4,988 - 4,988 7.100
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 1,225,818 4854311 6,080,129 (2,288,515) 67,107 (2,221,408) 8,301,537
Excess (deficiency) of revenucs over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances - (4,852,724) (4,852,724) 5,178,209 10,030,933
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in:
Capital Fund - - - - -
Operating transfers out;
Capital Fund - - - (2,028,435) (2,028.435)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures, encumbrances and
other uses - (4,852,724) (4,852,724) 3,149,774 8,002,498
Fund balance (deficit),
July 1, 2019 (Non-GAAP
budgetary basis) (75,621) - (75,621) (75,621) -
Fund balance (deficit),
June 30, 2020 (Non-GAAP
budgetary basis) 3 (75,621) $  (4,852,724) S (4,928,345 $ 3,074,153 $ 8,002,498
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

SPECIAL GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental:
County Court DUI

Public safety grants
Public service grants
Recreation grants

Public works grants
Total intergovernmental

Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES AND

ENCUMBRANCES:
DUI enforcement
Traffic & alcoho! enforcement
JAG grant
DOIJ-BJA grant
Emergency management grant
Homeland security grant
SHPO / CLG grant
Firchouse art grant

Legacy trail improvement grant

Traffic grant
VOCA grant

Total expenditures and

encumbrances

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
$ 103,089 - 103,089 25,872 $  (77.217)
- 195,053 195,053 168,942 (26,111)
- 16,767 16,767 11,072 (5,695)
- - - 10,400 10,400
103,089 211,820 314,909 216,286 (98,623)
- - - 6,533 6,553
103,089 211,820 314,909 222,839 (92,070)
103,089 1,290 104,379 45,899 - 45,899 58,480
- 150,358 150,358 64,854 - 64,854 85,504
- 27,137 27,137 27,137 - 27,137 -
- 69,301 69,301 8,568 12,300 20,868 48,433
- 7,500 7,500 2,366 - 2,366 5,134
- 15,880 15,880 15,880 - 15,880 -
- 16,767 16,767 16,009 “ 16,009 758
- 25,000 25,000 - - - 25,000
. 7,277 7,277 (626) - (626) 7,903
- 14,615 14,615 10,400 - 10,400 4,215
44,860 64,224 109,084 16,484 - 16,484 92,600
147,949 399,349 547,298 219,271 328,027
(Continued)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

SPECIAL GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures,
encumbrances (44,860) (187.529) (232,389) 3,568 235,957
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in;
Capital Fund - - - - -
General Fund - : - - - -
Operating transfers out:
General Fund - - - - -
Net other financing sources
sources - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over (under) expenditures,
encumbrances and other
sources (44,860) (187,529) (232,389) 3,568 235,957
Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) 1,981,330 - 1,981,330 1,981,330 -
Fund balance (deficit), June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) $1.936,470 $ (187,529 § 1,748,941 $ 1,984,898 $ 235957
(Concluded)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

PARK LAND FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment carnings $ 10,000 $ . $ 10,000 $ 16285 § 6285
Charges for services 85,000 - 85,000 72,165 (12,835)
Total revenues 95,000 - 95,000 88,450 (6.550)
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Parks and recreation - 129,190 129,190 $§ 21413 $ - 21,413 107,777
Total expenditures
and encumbrances - 129,190 129,190 $ 21,413 $ - 21,413 107,777
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances 95,000 (129,190) (34,190) 67,037 101,227
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers Out:
Norman Forward Fund - (150,000) (150,000) {150,000) -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances and other
financing sources (uses) 95,000 (279,190) {184,190) (82,963) 101,227
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) 951,961 - 951,961 951,961 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) $ 1,046,961 $ (279,190) § 767,771 $ 868,998 $ 101,227
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

SEIZURES AND RESTITUTIONS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual {Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
State Seizure/Restitution $ 9,000 - $ 9,000 $ 159,242 $ 150,242
Federal Seizure/Restitution 6,000 - 6,000 27,931 21,931
Investment earnings 500 - 500 5,947 5,447
Miscellaneous income - - - - -
Total revenues 15,500 - 15,500 193,120 177,620
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Public Safety:
State seizures 181,060 75,743 256,803 $ 54,657 $ 43,959 98,616 158,187
Federal scizures 300 27,855 28,155 27,319 - 27,319 836
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 181,360 103,598 284,958 $ 81,976 $ 43,959 125,935 159,023
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances (165,860) (103,598) (269,458) 67,185 336,643
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
General Fund - - - 23,125 23,125
Net other financing sources - - - 23,125 23,125
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances
and other financing sources (uses) (165,860) (103.598) (269.,458) 90,310 359,768
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 362,667 - 362,667 362,667 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ 196,807 $ (103,598 § 93,209 $ 452,977 $ 359,768
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

CLEET FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAILLANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual {Negative)
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures:
Cleet training revenue $ 32,000 $ - $ 32,000 $ 21,082 $(10,918)
Investment earnings - - - 63 63
Miscellaneous revenue - - - 20 20
Total revenues 32,000 - 32,000 21,165 (10,835)
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Public Safety:
Court Cleet Training 1,500 - 1,500 $ 941 $ - 941 559
Police Cleet Training 29,005 2,541 31,546 19,166 11 19,177 12,369
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 30,505 2,541 33,046 $ 20,107 $ 11 20,118 12,928
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances 1,495 (2,541) (1,046) 1,047 2,093
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 3,622 - 3,622 3,622 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ 5117 $(2,541) $ 2,576 $ 4,669 $ 2,093
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

TRANSIT AND PARKING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Sales taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 166,148 $ 166,148
Use taxes - - - 26,263 26,263
Investment carnings - - - 56,707 56,707
Grant revenue - 2,218,433 2,218,433 2,142,625 (75,808)
Miscellaneous income - 50,000 50,000 57,041 7,041
Total revenues - 2,268,433 2,268,433 2,448,784 180,351
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Public Works:
Fleet repair - 2,045,530 2,045,530 $ 1,577,035 $ 508,182 2,085,217 (39,687)
Transit & parking administratior - 2,408,354 2,408,354 2,392,170 135,513 2,527,683 (119,329)
Capital projects - 701,623 701,623 221,421 80,324 301,745 399,878
Total expenditures and
encumbrances - 5,155,507 5,155,507 $ 4,190,626 $ 724,019 4,914,645 240,862
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances - (2,887,074) (2,887,074) (2,465,861) 421,213
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
General Fund - 5,355,823 5,355,823 5,355.823 -
‘I'ransters out:
General Fund - (4,278,427) (4,278,427) (2,335,035) 1,943,392
Net other financing sources - 1,077,396 1,077,396 3,020,788 1,943,392
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances
and other financing sources (uses) - (1,809,678) (1,809,678) 554,927 2,364,605
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) - - - - -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ - $ (1,809,678) $ (1,809,678) $ 554,927 $ 2,364,605
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

ART IN PUBLIC PLACES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Other revenue $ 16,000 $ - $ 16,000 $ 7,698 $ (8,302)
Total revenues 16,000 - 16,000 7,698 (8,302)
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Parks & recreation
Donation 16,000 10,406 26,406 $ 363 $ 12,602 12,965 13,441
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 16,000 10,406 26,406 $ 363 $ 12,602 12,965 13,441
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and encumbrances
and other financing sources (uses) - (10,406) (10,406) (5,267) 5,139
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) (5,604) - (5,604) (5,604) -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ (5,604) § (10,406) $ (16,010) $ (10.871) $ 5,139
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual {Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property tax $ 6,972,443 - $ 6,972,443 $ 9,841,604 $ 2,869,161
Sales tax - - - - -
Total taxes 6,972,443 - 6,972,443 9,841,604 2,869,161
Investment earnings 25,000 - 25,000 71,271 46,271
QOther revenue;
Special assessments - - - - .
Total revenues 6,997,443 - 6,997,443 9,912,875 2,915,432
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Debt service:
Principal 4,025,000 - 4,025,000 $ 3,025,000 $ - 3,025,000 1,000,000
Interest and tiscal charges 1,790,422 - 1,790,422 1,981,445 - 1,981,445 (191,023)
Total expenditures and
encumbrances 5,815,422 - 5,815,422 $ 5,006,445 $ - 5,006,445 808,977
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances 1,182,021 - 1,182,021 4,906,430 3,724,409
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES);
Transfers out:
Insurance fund (825,000) - (825,000) (410,683) 414,317
Net other financing
sources (Uses) (825,000) - (825,000) (410,683) 414,317
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over (under)
expenditures, encumbrances
and other sources (uses) 357,021 - 357,021 4,495,747 4,138,726
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
{Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 2,662,623 - 2,662,623 2,662,623 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
{(Non-GAAP budgetary (basis) $ 3,019,644 - $ 3,019,644 $ 7,158,370 $ 4,138,726
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Paositive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actuat (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Sales tax § 13,565,038 § - § 13,565,038 $ 12,229,572 $ (1,335,466)
Sales tax - UNP TIF - - - 3,269,855 3,269,855
Property tax - UNP TIF 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2,100,339 100,339
Property tax - Center Cty TIF - - - 120,956 120,956
Special assessment 150,000 - 150,000 94,588 (55,412)
Investment earnings 290,000 - 290,000 876,941 586,941
Miscellaneous 660,510 90,290 750,800 796,974 46,174
Total revenues : 16,665,548 90,290 16,755,838 19,489,225 2,733,387
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Personnel costs 1,236,081 (98,769) 1,137,312 $ 1,236,317 $ - 1,236,317 (99,005)
Services and maintenance 144,855 241918 386,773 276,410 - 276,410 110,363
Cost allocation charges 200 - 200 200 - 200 -
Capital equipment 2,500 - 2,500 2,222 - 2,222 278
Capital projects 29,850,907 39,003,151 68,854,058 7,649,487 7,396,226 15,045,713 53,808,345
Capital projects -
UNP TTF 1,100,000 3,697,544 4,797,544 65,177 1,119,365 1,184,542 3,613,002
Debt service - UNP TIF - 9,202,449 9,202,449 - - - 9,202,449
Debt service 1,316,384 - 1,316,384 1,315,134 - 1,315,134 1,250

Total expenditures
and encumbrances 33,650,927 52,046,293 85,697,220 $ 10,544,947 $ 8,515,591 19,060,538 66,636,682

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures

and encumbrances (16,985,379) (51,956,003) (68,941,382) 428,687 69,370,069
QOTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Qut:
General fund (4,033,931) (1,150,801) (5,184,732) (4,586,442) 598,290
Westwood fund (83,000) - (83,000) (82,184) 816
Transit & parking fund - (140,000) (140,000) (140,000) -
Seizures fund - - - (23,125) (23,125)
PSST fund (462,943) - (462,943) (462,948) (5)
Transfers In:
General fund - - - - .
CDBG fund - 2,028,435 2,028,435 2,028,435 -
Seizures fund - 196,312 196,312 - (196,312)
Debt proceeds 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 - (20,000,000)
Net other financing
sources (uses) 15,420,126 933,946 16,354,072 (3,266,264) (19,620,336)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures
and encumbrances and
other sources (uses) (1,565,253) (51,022,057 (52,587,310) (2,837,577 49,749,733
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) 67,382,451 - 67,382,451 67,382 451 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) $  65817,198 $ (51,022,057) $ 14,795,141 $ 64,544 874 $ 49,749,733
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLLAHOMA

NORMAN FORWARD FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance-
Original Revised Encum- Positive
Budget Revisions Budget Expenditures brances Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Sales tax $ 9,634,945 $ - $ 9,634,945 3 9,280,292 $ (354,653)
Use tax 647,546 - 647,546 1,046,880 399,334
Investment earnings 15,000 - 15,000 570925 555,925
Miscellaneous - - - 52980 52.980
Total revenues 10,297,491 - 10,297,491 10,951,077 653,586
EXPENDITURES AND
ENCUMBRANCES:
Services and maintenance - 1,727,875 1,727,875 $ 329,408 $ 1,082,318 1,411,726 316,149
Capital projects 31,492,860 39,803,097 71,295,957 6,728,112 6,415,430 13,143,542 58,152,415
Debt service 4,695,718 - 4,695,718 4,123,775 - 4,123,775 571,943
Total expenditures
and encumbrances 36,188,578 41,530,972 77,719,550 $ 11,181,295 $ 7,497748 18,679,043 59,040,507
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances (25,891,087) (41,530,972) (67,422,059) (7,727,966) 59,694,093
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Out:
Capital fund (222,695) - (222,695) (174,328) 48,367
Transfers In;
Water fund - - - 54,419 54,419
Capital fund - 150,000 150,000 150,000 -
Debt proceeds 37,750,000 - 37,750,000 - (37,750,000)
Net other financing
sources (uses) 37.527,305 150,000 37,677,305 30,091 (37,647,214)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures
and encumbrances and
other sources (uses) 11,636,218 (41,380,972) (29,744,754) (7,697,875) 22,046,879
Fund balance, July 1, 2019
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) 38,350,999 - 38,350,999 38,350,999 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2020
(Non-GAAP budgetary
basis) $ 49987217 $(41,380,972) § 8,606,245 $ 30,653,124 $ 22,046,879
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NOTES TO OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULES —~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, DEBT SERVICE FUND, CAPITAL PROJECTS

FUND AND NORMAN FORWARD FUND

Budget Reconciliations - Items required to adjust actual revenues, expenditures, and fund balances reported on the budgetary

basis to those reported within the fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Fund balances, June 30, 2020 (Non-GAAP

budgetary basis)
Current year encumbrances
included in expenditures

Prior year encumbrances outstanding

Current year revenue accrual
Current year expenditure accrual

GAAP basis fund balances, June 30, 2020

Budgetary basis revenues
Current year revenue accrual
Prior year revenue accrual

GAAP basis revenues

Budgetary basis expenditures
Current year encumbrances
included in expenditures
Prior year encumbrances paid
Current year expenditure accrual
Prior year expenditure accrual

GAAP basis expenditures

Special Debt Capital Norman
Revenue Service Projects Forward
Funds Fund Fund Fund
$ 6,854,484 7,158,370 § 64,544,874 $ 30,653,124
968,872 - 8,515,591 7,497,748
62 - 3,825,124 328,133
807,028 42,367 2,756,147 2,080,691
(428,878) - (804,975) (54,761)
$ 8,201,568 7,200,737 $ 78,836,761 $ 40,504,935
§ 7,362,482 9,912,875 $ 19,489,225 $ 10,951,077
807,028 42,367 2,756,147 2,080,691
(2,424,334) (11,106) (2,835,843) (1,711,439)
$ 5,745,176 9,944,136 $ 19,409,529 $ 11,320,329
$ 4,632,712 5,006,445 $ 19,060,538 $ 18,679,043
(968,872) - (8,515,591) (7,497,748)
3,162,098 - 9,170,053 5,955,549
428,878 - 804,975 54,761
(16,857) - (271,679) (1,281,069)
$ 7,237,959 5,006,445 $ 20,248,296 $ 15,910,536
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND - NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts
Interest

Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payroll payable
Accrued interest payable
Guaranty deposits
Revenue bonds payable

Notes payable
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable, net

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets

Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Westwood Sanitation

Park Services Total
$ 388,863 $ 9,392,276 $ 9,781,139
1,914 420,941 422,855
- 6,069,869 6,069,869
- 958,942 958,942
- 26,289 26,289
- 80,807 80,807
390,777 16,949,124 17,339,901
230,997 - 230,997
7,017,641 10,491,921 17,509,562
7,248,638 10,491,921 17,740,559
7,639,415 27.441.045 35,080.460
202,024 503,707 705,731
110,628 133,039 243,667
1,914 - 1,914
. 420,941 420,941
180,000 - 180,000
9,023 32,471 41,494
503,589 1,090,158 1,593,747
101,935 366,849 468,784
188,793 - 188,793
290,728 366,849 657,577
794,317 1,457,007 2,251,324
6,642,641 10,491,921 17,134,562
230,997 - 230,997
(28,540) 15,492,117 15,463,577
$ 6,845,098 $ 25,984,038 $ 32,829,136
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUND - NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Westwood Sanitation
Park Services Total
Operating revenues:
Golf and pool fees b 1,632,229 § -3 1,632,229
Sanitation services, net - 15,095,368 15,095,368
Other 5,641 14,978 20,619
Total operating revenues 1,637,870 15,110,346 16,748,216
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 1,296,851 4,559,891 5,856,742
Supplies and materials 338,695 953,175 1,291,870
Services and maintenance 263,032 5,917,192 6,180,224
Depreciation and amortization . 172,731 1,983,162 2,155,893
Total operating expenses 2,071,309 13,413,420 15,484,729
Operating income (loss) (433,439) 1,696,926 1,263,487
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings 6,315 385,955 ! 392,270
Interest and fiscal charges (36,877) (39,401) (76,278)
Miscellaneous income (expense) 16,257 132,129 148,386
Net nonoperating revenues (€Xpenses) (14,305) 478,683 464,378
Income (loss) before transfers (447,744) 2,175,609 1,727,865
Transfers in (out):
Transfers in 602,561 - 602,561
Transfers out - - -
Net transfers 602,561 - 602,561
Net income 154,817 2,175,609 2,330,426
Net position - beginning 6,690,281 23,808,429 30,498,710
Net position - ending 3 6,845,098 3 25,984,038 § 32,829,136
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUND - NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Westwood Sanitation
Park Services Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 1,637,870 $ 15,390,603 $ 17,028,473
Cash paid to employees for services (1,269,709) (4,499,675) (5,769,384)
Cash paid to suppliers (574,937) (6,703,336) (7,278,273)
Other payments - 208,069 208,069
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (206,776) 4,395,661 4,188,885
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in 602,561 - 602,561
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 602,561 - 602,561
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 29,203 26,738 55,941
Payments for the acquisition of capital assets (90,431) (1,966,590) (2,057,021)
Principal payments on revenue bonds payable (170,000} - (170,000)
Principal payments on notes payable - (1,580,000) (1,580,000)
Interest and fiscal charges paid (34,641) (53,029) (87,670)
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities (265,869) (3,572,881) (3,838,750)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturity of investments - 8,566,636 8,566,636
Payments for purchases of investments - (4,610,244) (4,610,244)
Investment earnings received 6,366 282,157 288,523
Net cash provided by investing activities 6,366 4,238,549 4,244,915
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 136,282 5,061,329 5,197,611
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 485,492 4,751,888 5,237,380
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ 621,774 $ 9,813,217 $ 10,434,991
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $  (433439) § 1,696,926 $ 1,263,487
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Miscellaneous revenue 16,257 132,129 148,386
Bad debt expense - 87,650 87,650
Depreciation and amortization 172,731 1,983,162 2,155,893
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (16,257) (838) (17,095)
Decrease in accounts receivable, net - 183,565 183,565
Decrease in due from other funds - 76,778 76,778
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 26,790 167,031 193,821
Increase in payroll payable 43,282 30,404 73,686
Increase in guaranty deposits - 9,042 9,042
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (16,140) 29.812 13,672
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities §  (206,776) 5 4,395,661 $ 4,188,885
NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Change in unrealized gain on investments $ - $  (124955) $ (124,955)
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND - NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts

Interest
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payroll payable
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable
Guaranty deposits

Notes payable
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Notes payable, net
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets
Restricted for debt service

Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

Water Wastewater Total
$ 14,936,018 $ 10,915,050 $ 25,851,068
13,260,570 506,939 13,767,509
12,761,447 10,321,628 23,083,075
2,126,180 1,060,992 3,187,172
55,372 44,703 100,075
130,961 146,731 277,692
43,270,548 22,996,043 66,266,591
- 6,514,715 6,514,715
138,971,522 137,424,490 276,396,012
138,971,522 143,939,205 282,910,727
182,242,070 166.935.248 349.177.318
599,665 4,236 603,901
599,665 4,236 603,901
2,441,886 571,824 3,013,710
166,623 55,569 222,192
395,106 202,058 597,164
1,027,464 33,876 1,061,340
852,976 411,066 1,264,042
3,475,000 3,480,951 6,955,951
42,076 28,901 70,977
8,401,131 4,784,245 13,185,376
50,830,984 26,000,713 76,831,697
475,354 326,507 801,861
51,306,338 26,327,220 77,633,558
59,707,469 31,111,465 90,818,934
95,146,667 107,908,951 203,055,618
503,895 - 503,895
- 6,614,312 6,614,312
27,483,704 21,304,756 48,788,460
$ 123,134,266 $ 135,828,019 $ 258.962,285
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND - NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Operating revenues:
Water service, net
Wastewater service, net
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and materials
Services and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Tax revenue
Investment earnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Miscellaneous income (expense)

Net nonoperating revenucs (€Xpenses)
Income before capital contributions and operating transfers

Capital contributions - donated water and sewer distribution systems
Transfers out

Net capital contributions and transfers

Net income
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Water Wastewater Total
$ 23,448,852 $ - $ 23,448,852
- 15,984,512 15,984,512
362,544 - 362,544
23,811,396 15,984,512 39,795,908
4,389,482 3,552,697 7,942,179
2,392,919 493,736 2,886,655
6,733,530 4,630,100 11,363,630
4,930,396 9,236,047 14,166,443
18,446,327 17,912,580 36,358,907
5,365,069 (1,928,068) 3,437,001
- 1,283,126 1,283,126
931,490 650,871 1,582,361
(1,692,674) (827,724) (2,520,398)
151,297 60.165 211,462
(609,887} 1,166,438 556,551
4,755,182 (761,630) 3,993,552
1,760,720 1,025,585 2,786,305
(1,083,577) (568,295) (1,651,872)
677,143 457,290 1,134,433
5,432,325 (304,340) 5,127,985
117,701,941 136,132,359 253,834,300

$§ 123,134,266

$ 135,828,019

$ 258,962,285

-110 -



THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUND - NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers
Other payments
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers out

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Payments for the acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from taxes
Proceeds from notes payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Interest and fiscal charges paid
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Payments for purchases of investments
Investment earnings received
' Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Miscellaneous income
Bad debt expense
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in accounts receivable, net
Decrease due from other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in payroll payable
Increase (decrease) in retainage payable
Increase (decrease) in guaranty deposits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Donated water and sewer distribution systems

Change in unrealized gain on investments
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Water Wastewater Total
$ 23,381,603 $ 15,976,560 $ 39,358,163
(4,300,283) (3,605,776) (7,906,059)
(8,832,103) (4,783,737) (13,615,840)
955,503 213,947 1,169,450
11,204,720 7,800,994 19,005,714
(1.083,577) (568,295) (1,651,872)
(1,083,577) (568,295) (1,651,872)
30,225 - 30,225
(19,388,236) (1,143,162) (20,531,398)
. 1,283,126 1,283,126
6,447,741 - 6,447,741
(3,710,000) (3,586,095) (7.296,095)
(1,569,107) (819,999) (2,389,106)
(18,189,377) (4,266,130) (22,455,507)
20,613,317 14,343,503 34,956,820
(9,692,693) (7,839,580) (17,532,273)
752,611 472,631 1,225,242
11,673,235 6,976,554 18,649,789
3,605,001 9,943,123 13,548,124
24,591,587 7,993,581 32,585,168
$ 28,196,588 $ 17,936,704 $ 46,133,292
$ 5365069 $ (1,928,068) § 3,437,001
151,297 60,165 211,462
155,619 100,733 256,352
4,930,396 9,236,047 14,166,443
497,864 18,816 516,680
(579,686) (117,009) (696,695)
306,342 134,963 441,305
(534,482) 365,172 (169,310)
69,410 (23,769) 45,641
828,828 (25,073) 803,755
(5,726) 8,327 2,601
19,789 (29,310) (9,521)
$ 11,204,720 $ 7,800,994  $ 19,005,714
$ 1,760,720 $ 1,025,585 $ 2,786,305
$  (255631) $  (213,089) 5 (468,720)




THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Investments - mutual funds

Loans to 401(a) Plan participants
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
NET POSITION

Net position:
Restricted for pension benefits

Restricted for retirement benefits

Total liabilities and net position
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Annuity 401(a)
Pool Plan
Fund Fund Total
$162,027 $ 98,153257 $ 98315284
- 3,690,250 3,690,250
$162,027 §$ 101,843,507 § 102,005,534

$ 162,027

101,843,507

$ 162,027

101,843,507

$ 162,027

§$ 101,843,507

$ 102,005,534




THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Annuity 401(a)
ADDITIONS: Pool Fund Fund Total
Contributions:;
Employer $ - $ 2,625,655 $ 2,625,655
Employee - 2,346,816 2,346,816
Total contributions - 4,972,471 4,972,471
Investment income (loss) 7,596 8,036,644 8,044,240
Total additions 7,596 13,009,115 13,016,711
DEDUCTIONS:
Pension benefits paid 50,659 8,431,871 8,482,530
Administration costs 815 - 315
Total deductions 51,474 8,431,871 8,483,345
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE (43,878) 4,577,244 4,533,366
Net position restricted for pension and retirement benefits,
Beginning of year 205,905 97,266,263 97,472,168
End of year $ 162,027 $ 101,843,507 $102,005,534
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020

CENTENNIAL AGENCY FUND:

ASSETS

Cash § 2,751 § 3,177 $ - $ 5,928

Investments 6,707 - (2,925) 3,782

Interest receivable 32 - (16) 16
Total assets $ 9,490 $ 3,177 $ (2941) % 9,726

LIABILITIES

Funds held for others $ 9,490 $ 3,177 $ (2,941) $ 9,726
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 116-121

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity | 122-124

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant
local revenue source, the sales tax.

Debt Capacity 125-129

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 130-131

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 132-134
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the

information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs,

-115-



-911 -

STSBBY'THY § LIOLELTLY § CISOPET6H 0€0°908°11S § POL6OF'PTS $ SBIBIGFLS § 199°016°109 § 9s0'65¥6£9 §  8LIVTLTOL 108°0£S°LIL
846°9L9°0T 09€°TH8°0T [1€°0L1°ST 8E6°S6L YT (801°€0T°¢) 850°150°S (s€0°60L°T) ¥Z0'£89°C 0LPOLEEE S0L'6T8°6T
L96'666'19 [91°766°69 VLLVITES 969'88L°T8 806'6L1°TL £0SLYI'LS LBEVTESEE 9£6'8TTLOT 119°1¥TS T 8€8° 1T €9
016 118°9S€ § 96V T96'SLE §  8TH196'¢8E 96 ITT PO $  POSTEYSOY § PTO6IVT8Y § 6DE'S6TOF § 960°LPSITS  §  LEOTIIWSS 85T 65 HT9
PLTSLSYE6T § 669TBSTOT $  €0L'P8T'60T 09L°6E8°C1T § TOE'BSERTT § SLE'SSRLYT §  0SS°LS80OT § +ZSET6ELT  $ 0I0°CELH8T 1TF'16L° 162
LO8'LLITT STBTEO'6T 6T9°VL8 1L £rSh98°0€ L9666 VE YL 68y 00S'€18°TY SIT00F v 2E8°001°C9 LEO'TSTYY
¥80°895°2 9T9°888°¢T 1LL'PILET SS8FIT'ET £51°CTO01 176°L90°1 L81°679°9 ST1°856°91 L61°129°01 FOT'6VEL
£8E°6T86FL § SPT 1996V §  £0L'SHYES] Z9E'09L°6ST §  TLT'SBE'EBT §  09T'8E9'861 § €98 ¥IVIIT $ +61°695°TIT  §  SL6'0I9DIT 081°061°0ZC
1SS°EI6'LPT § 8IEPITOLT $§ OI8'190°E8T § OLT'996°L6T $§ T1605096C § OITTISITE § I111°CSO°IPE § TES'SES'SOE  § 8911681 08E°6EL°STY
(658°005°1) ($9¥°061°27) (81€v0L°9) (509°890°0} (sLo'estsy)  (9eL's60er)  (Ses'zes'vy)  (161°L1L°8E) (89€°0€L'6T) (zeeTer've)
£88°1Er' Tl SE6'C0I ‘o £00°05+°65 1¥8°€LS 68 SSL'9S1°T9 785°6L0°98 00Z°569°8T1 178°0LT°06 rI¥0T9 Y01 $£9°T68°SS
LTST86'90T § 8YTI0E€°9TT § STIOTL0ET § FEOIOPPFT $ CTETLPOZRT § POC'IES'CST § OVF0S8°9ST § TOGISEEIE § CTI‘T0S'EvE 8L0'69T ¥OF
LHOZ F{ 1174 €102 0T SK0T 9102 2102 810z 6102 0zoz
Jes) [eassiy

uenisod jou Juawitsaod Arewnid [gjoL
DPAIOLNSIIUNY
PSSy
s19sSe fenides u JuswIsaAUl JON

jusunuerod AIeiLg

uonisod 1ou satnanoe adA-sseulsng (el0]
PRIOLISILY
PaILISY
51988E [endes 1 JueWISeAU] JON

sanianoe sdAy-ssauisng

uoTSod JaU SAIATIOR [RIUSWUIAAOS jBI0 ]
paldLIsaIuf]
PaILISY
sjasse fenden u jusunsaaul N

SOIJIAIIOR [EJUSWITLIAOL)

{Sunpunosse Jo siseq |ensooe)
SHVIA TVISId NIL LSV
LININOJIWOD AD NOILISOd 1IN

VINOHVTMO ‘NVINHON 40 ALID 3HL



T8Y99ESTI  §  OTITSHO'8TI 180°600°€El  $ L997S0STYT § SHTL6SFPET $ CH6SST8YI €0T°L€8°851T 687°€89°091 T8SELEFST rL8897°€81 § sasuadxa
Jeawwisaod Arewnd 1ejo

6EF° LYL'SE £T6°€£9°8¢ L9E°€8L 6L F6£°LS6'EY €P598E T S00THS SH 1LO'SYT e 76567 SK LSOPS9'8Y 80£999°CS sesuadxa sarpAnoe
adAy-ssausng {ej0],

YLF'CSOTT SLE6LYTT 9T STET SOF086°Cl 179°867°C1 988°CE1°ZI ZLTS00°TT 988°8.8°C1 820 b6 EL 655 6L EL uonEUES

876'9€L'T1 LPTOP8 11 L9L6TTTT §€6859°S1 HLLL st £ETTTTLI TIP8PFSI 656°LTI Y] 89°879°91 LIT°LT9°81 10/RMASEM

T65°6LY 01 68F°0€9°€1 S6E9LLET 8TL19TEL TH1°8STEY TLE'EPE VI 60°5ES° V1 S66°17E°91 00L°50591 680°5E°81 131e M

SPFSLY'L TIELLYT 656 15Kl 997951 080°T8€E PLSOPE §6T°95T°1 TSL00S'T 19¥°970°T EPPFTIT HIBd POOMISOM
:SanATIOR 2dA3-ssauisng

EF0'619°6L L6T'TTH 68 FIL'STTE6 ELTRYS'L6 SO0L0IST6 8€6°€1LZ01 TETT6S ST L69°ESESTI ST6'81L°S01 995°709°0€1 sasuadxa saniAnIE
[EIULWIISA0S JBI0],

685°90€°T 0b0'SILT zE0'T181 €31 106°T £01°5TET 01T LLTS 9F9FELY LOTLEG'Y PICLETF ST Y 192p ULIA-FUOT UO 1SAUI3)U]

1$9°050°T¥ £61°3TSPY ETLEETOY L6S618°LY £00°08% LY ¥8E176°08 THPEI9'ES 8E8°L18°SS 9sE'orIsy 0TT9ES° €S Ayoyes oqng

OFLLLLT 058°89¢°C 198°THTT 981'1¥8°C 1S¥'SL8°T ¥90°9L6°C 91£768°C £87°LT9°T 9LOBILY F1T566°T S01AI3S DTNy

10SH8E°LT FESOI8'61 808°9T1°1T S91°0€5°1C PE0ETTT £50°68¢°ST 68L°€S60E €L6'7T89°9T 6£5719°ST T66°L9Y°6E sjiem olgnd

SV 156 88£°9L0°C 865°1ST’S 96L°555°S 010%61°C LLL'IEG'S 186°L80°L LOV'TOS 9 6L6°605°L L96°6E5°8 UoMe2192] PUR SYre]

619°662°C T0F¥OFT Por'9sT’e TE6'LEC'E £6L°90L 000°€68 805°1€T} TSE6PHT [1¥'€60C 006°L0TT 1B[jonues AN

£9EPreT 097°€90°¢ PLOPEE'E 0S€'80Z°¢ 88L°L6TE 6L6°0TEE 4423153 VOLLLY'E YPTL9E' e 6TH'8TTE Juiuuery

9L0706°9 § 1€6°EFF 0T PSSLI0'01  §  b9L'ESETT $ £76°00S'8 $ IL¥666°L 8T0°€9L°01 €LE658°TT 900°8EL°C1 T6S8LE L] $ JUSWILIDAOS [BIDUAD)
ISOIHALYE [RIUSWILISAOL)
SASNAIX3

1102 kA {114 €107 ¥I0T S10T 910z L10T 8107 6107 0702

Jeax [easiy

(Buunoaoe jo siseq [eniaode)

SHYIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
NOILISOd 13N NI S3ONVHD

YINOHVIMO ‘NVINYON 40 ALID IHL



- 811 -

(118°6£0°08) § (82876975 § (156L01°L9) § (9£L°0Z8°c) § (bL8°0TI+E) § (699°€75°05) § (£80°TOV'6L) § (TSE8EL'69Y § {(£L07T6870S)

$ (050°8LE66) $

167569

PSI8ETL

8881119

6¥P9'EEsT

80T'8C1°TI

vEOOYS L]

Te9'001°T1

6€8°1LEE]

8896589

(95L'766'9€) $ (TEO'1L865) § (6€8°61T°€L) § (S8EHS99L) § (TR0°6T'OV) § (€0Cv9€'89) § (61L°T05°16) § (161°0L1°€8) § (19L°15L°LS)

LL6L61°s
$ (196°L5v01) ¢

$€9°97CSE $ THTTIPSL S OEI10669 § 1€6F89°L9 § +LE98L00IS PLTTELL6 § OLISEHSEL § LE6P¥606 § 605 18°E01  §  +T8°068°€8 $

1S€°00L°ZF LLO'TLR'SY $sTS68°Sh £r0°16L°9Y 1SLYTSHS 6£9°78€° €9 £0L°5YE°CS IEF10L'8S SYEYISSS GITFI8°LS

0T PLY Y 8€T 16Tt T69°900°S 8€8'1TLE LIO'EOLL 1£8°6Z5°01 0£TYTET STH'EIT'S 015°695°T S0L'98LT

716078°11 FLP10S €T 1FE9pS el 1990071 18T°166°¢1 958°BEE Y1 £58°P8S Y1 €LT'6VS VI £98°16L 71 £E9EFTST

996°GL0°T1L YEYISH T 6VSE8E 1L 0€5°906°¢€1 8TI°SILSH 96£°€76°61 0€SL9L ST 06+ 18L°ST P6TTE6'ST TIS'H86°ST

616811 0S09% S I TI0°L18Y1 8L6'ESOY1 £O0'0S0'91 980°96%° 1T LETSELIT PeIEpsIT 9888610 0FSLIZTT

ELEEPIT LTTLOTT 199°IF1°1 $80°T0T1 8I1E590°T OLY 860°1 £58°¢L6 650°79Z°1 T6L°199°1 6TTTEY'L

L8T9THTF SOT°0vS 6T $L8°600°0T 888°£68°0T €T 19T SE9°6FE PE £1¥'680%C 90S E¥T TE ¥91°L96'LY 509°970°9C

167 7E6°0E YSLPPEEl 8ESYSL'S 31€°108°S 11£°856'6T ¥Z0P19°ST 166°€18°¢ [9€°9LT'6 SLIPOP0E 88LCEED

SPIILLY 198°1¥T°8 9TL'€689 LYE'EES L 9£8°8SLL 805°6LE0T 89E°6LETL 805°0LS Y1 691°88€°01 0E6°L9L 01

$99°990°¢ Tr9'80T°¢ Or9°0r0°'e 95F'STIE 808°967'¢ 8S8°L60°E ov9'T16T 69%°95T'€ ¥8E°9€1°T $98vsT'E

- - - - - - - - - vee'Let

BET'T6S L18'895 85E°905 £EV L3S SLT'609 £19°€59 or1°0ES 8ES°L6F P0O0TE LYS'SOr

£6099 97T 551 696°691 8E8°FIT AR 9TL T Z91'199 S1Te89 $89°0L9 19518

196°600°1 PTSETI'l 901°€1Z1 O£ 9LE’T T85°69¢°1 TP ESE°l 9LL 1901 £8€°766 AT 2% 6LEELE

¥60°981 $ IPELETT $ BESTIEYT 0§ 99SHSST § 9LLYPIT $ S6FTIOT 0§ 9LE0ELT $ TEOULOLT 0§ $66°T00°C $ 099°LEgE $
107 710t €107 (2074 s10T 9107 L10T 8102 6107 0207

1A [ISI]

asuadxa 1ou juswraacs Arewnd [e1o]

sonraltor adAy-ssouisngg

SATUALDE [RIUSWUISAOL)

INNIATH/I(ISNIJX3T) L3N

$9NUSASI JusWILIRA0F Arewiid [e10],
sonuaaal wrridoid
saranoe adAl-ssauisng [elo]
suonnqueo pue syueld ende)
uonenuey
IOTEMIISEAN
IBM
jIed POOMISIAL
$201A13S 10} sadiey))
'santanoe adAl-ssauisng
sanusaal weidold
SOIJIAILOE [BUSILIDACT [E10],
suonnqrIued pue sjueld [elde)
suonquuoa pue syuels 3uteradQ
K1ages orjqnd
S0 QNG
UO[B233I PUE S}IBJ]
I3[{onuod AN
gurutelg
JUSUILIDAOS [RIDUD)
15901196 10] 28Ry
ISOIIATIOE [EJUSUILIBAOD)

SANNIATY NVHOOUd

{Bujjunoaoe Jo siseq {eniaoe)

SYVYIA TvOSId NIL LSV
NOILISOd L3N NI SONVHO

VINOHV MO ‘NVINHON 40 ALID JHL



-6l -

jusIuIA0g Arewnd 210 |

sanianoe ad£-ssauisng
SOUNAIIOR [E1USUILIOAOD)

NOILISOd 13N NI 3ONVHD

jusunIaAos Arewnnid fejo

sanianoe ad4A-ssaursnq eio],
SIBJSURIT,
SNOJUB[IIISIA]
s3uruies JuatNSAU|
SoX®) 9s19%g
SoXE] SI[BS
:sapianoe adA-ssoursng

SI1IANOR [BIUSWIWIA0F [BI0],
SI9JSUBI]
STIOQUE}IISIA]
SSuIuIes JUSUNSAAU]
saxe) aamesi)
$axB) 2FRIAQ OI[OTO[Y
S2XE) [NO/I910H
sexe} as)
soxe) Aladolg
Saxe) ASTYIURL]
SoXE] S3BS
IS2TUATIOR [BIUDUILIOAOD)

S13SSVY 13N NI S3ONVHD ¥3HI10

EPO'LLTLY § TOI'B0E0E § €9€9LL°0T § LIST6SHSOl § 9THESITO § 188°8STOS § QLY THTLT § S6EBPE9IE § TTISITE9 $§  £T9°908°F1 §
0L8°TSL'L STHLO0S 6TT6ETL LSO'SSSY T€9°85S1 €8S L6161 SLSTT00°E1 ¥L6'S90°€1 9860101 11F°8SHL
€L0°GZS6E § L9L00ETT § FEILES'ET § 09FF06'F] § F6LVEI'LYF § 86TEOL0E § [06°0vTHI $ ITHTSTET $ 9£9°658°TS § TITYHEL §
L8LLIE'LL § OLO'TP6'ZS § FICPS8°L8 §  €ST08TE6 $§ 00€79T96 § 0SSTSLO01S €9SHF9901S LPL9STLOLS S6TLSIHITS L9 VST FIILS
8567661 1LT°69L IPELTI’l 80t 1TL 1 YTr08¢T 6¥6959°( £76°006 {598°50¢) 86L°6VS°€C 005°092°T
(TLLI8L) (768°€LL) (s6L7v€EL) (ssL°c0L) (£8T°680°1)  (T6L8STT)  (IbSp6TT)  (6TSLSIT)  (640°050°T)  (I1€°6¥0°T)
85¢°L81 (8¥s'cce) 8L6°1+T 26°TIE 9yT990°1 1L0°069 £€0°10S {9rz0ve) S61°L6T $50°TS
L§9°65E 16L°8LC LESL8T ¥86°THE 78£°0SC 91L°CIS 196°€91 sTo'TLy 162°9%0°¢ T1€9°FL6°1
STL'8E0°1 096°L6S°L 1ZETEV'T S61°69L°1 6LO°6F1°T P16°60L°T 06¥°0£5°1 $88°61¢°1 19€°9€Z°1 9Z1°€8T°1
678°L159L 66L°1L1°T8 €L6°9SL°98 SHR°8SS°I6 9/8°€88°€6 109°ST1°66 0T9°EPLCOT  TI9T6SLOL  L6ELO9OTT  SLIFTHLIL
TLLI8L T68°CLL SOLYEL SSL 0L £82°680°1 TSL']ETI 1¥S #6771 6TSLSI1 6¥0°0£0°1 LLE610°1
£07°796 99L°19L°T 11+°61€°C 160°8SH°T 066961°C 901°Ek6’T 8€8°CLTT 966°LT9C 169°29L°€ FE6°0S¥T
$60°96¢ FTS 0L £9L°80T S08°6LE £98°€T¢ 06L°696°T RETELS TEL°988°1 TT6°861°¢ SLY68FT
£05°918 6F1°SH8 £59%9L 006'9%L SP6'ILL T61°6€8 760°768 o6v9°rEs 786°LS9 11F+0L
F10°L¥T 6SE°1LT 6€€°68T L69°TLT 819°10¢ §TT90€ £1091¢ TSTHIE 18 27 81861
000°890°1 88F°0ET°T TT1€TSET TSF 89’1 88L°68L°1 £80°6T8°L 168°6SL°T €6T6L8°1 67T 8L8°1 LTSLOE'T
687°L81°T 80L'€6E°T Y8F8TFT 9E1 05T 80 ¥98°T £98°L9Y'€ STI'L6L'E LIE8FI'S T€8961°L 969°L10°6
LESFRIL T66°1€6°L 681°CES T 0v6°18%°C1 860°079°11 067 F6L°6 F09°6EL 1 STSILGTT 8FLS6ET1 668°T90°CTI
¥97°822°9 £58%8S9 989°TLE 9 9FLT8L9 689°6ST°L TILEPL9 098°L089 061 F60°L 1L6°6799 6EE°1£S°9
TSEOVIOS § 890'LLL'SS § THE'RSSD9 § €TE08S°€9 § €SS°BLLSO § +80IS60L § 8SPSPEEL § 60L°L96°CL $ BESEIFPL § €98°T1I8°CL §
1102 107 €107 $107 SI0T 9107 LI0T 8107 6107 0702
Jeax jeasty

ANV INNIATY TVHINTD

{Bununoasoe jo siseq |eniooe)

SHVIA 1VIOSId N3L 1SV
NOILISOd L3N NI STIONVHO

VINOHYIMO ‘NVINHON 40 ALID JHL



-0cl -

60T8LE'GY § OFP001°69 $ STH'SEL'96 § LOP'EO1'88 § TOP'ECI'STI § L99'L6I'99T § €9P'8TS'E81 § PESTSTS091 § TSETLSIST § HTLP6ISHT § SpUry [EIUAWILIOA0T
Iay10 T8 Te10 ],
£91°L8S 69£°650°1 ELV0SE' 1€9°7£8°1 8L0°8YLT 6LE9EVE I8LTILE T65°0VS*y VLS F66'E 9€L°€1T'S pauBissy
9P0'16L8Y §  LLD'IFO'R9 § TS6'VSES6 § 9€8BTEOR § PBECLPETI $ 88TIILTYI $ TBYSIIVST $ THEPESST § BOVLLSTLFI §  886°08F°OFI $ paloInsaY
spuny
_ﬁﬁosﬁo\row 210 |V
P08'699°Cl § 1ZSCLVEL § ES9TTFTI § 6ZTGEI'El § BSEGOEFI $ SOF06EFT § TI996L°CT § 9£8°C068I § SELT6S6T § 8TC68SLTI § punj [eIausE [El0],
#98°€8TTI 900 ¥81°01 L1§°S0t'8 9L PRE'] £55°062°8 7E6°198°8 STHF991°L 1Z5'ov0'cl 6LETTEL 905°9€8°01 paudisseur)
Y62 LEDT PLSLOF Y [L0°691°T 9FLTSTT 89.°068°C 8TH18CC LEO'86TT TTI'E0ST SOL'I#ST [L5618°T paugissy
6TH°E0S°1 £2E°018°T 965°755°T £6£°161°¢ 6t1°9zCc 969°T0€ ¢ S6T1EEE 617 P6LE 9L1°688°¢E panRuWO)
LOEFT - - - - - - - - - PARLISIY
6£EYEE zis'oze THo'LEE IE1°LY 99T 968°0C €LV6T 868°+T T0F°CE §90%1 slqepuadsuoN
- - - - - - - - - - PoAIdSaIUN)
- $ - $§ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $§ - $ - $ PaALasIY
punj jeIauan)

41174 10T £107 ¥10z 9 {114 9107 L10T 8102 6102 0707

JB3 X [BISE]

(upunoooe Jo siseq jeniooe payipow)

SHVIA TVISId NIL LSV

SONNA TVLNIWNYIA0D 4O S2ONVIVE aNN4

VNOHVIMO ‘NVINHON 40 ALID IHL



-1cr -

%86'S AN 2%66'L %E0°TT %80°C1 %ZTEL %061 %0L°81 260592 %111 sainypuadxs reydesuou
Jo 93ejuooiad & s 9014198 192(]
FE6'ST § 68€6E $ T8SOT § (96872} $§ 07L8¢ $ 950 § L£091 $ (PeILI} § (89T8) $ (6/8°L) § S30UB[Rq PUIY UL SUBYD JON
006°C1 rET6E LYERT LYLFL 0c1°9p ZL009 LESTLE Z19% See1e €0L (sasn) $221008 FUIdURUL JAUIC [BIO],
(z8L°%)  (Z66'L)  (0L8°]8)  (DIL°Q) (ceTt) (919'¢8)  {9K6"6) (zzz'o)  (9%6°F) (€v6°LT) Mo sIgysuelf,
¥95°6 Ot°L £98°8 98F°S 96t L F€0°SE £€S°01 6TL°91 9€L°S 9+9°81 Ul SI9JsUBILJ,
- - - - - (LoL'e) - - - - jua3e 401983 PUOq PIPUNJSI 01 JUSWAR
65S°L 198°61 6L1 - - 9Tl - - $3¢ - 143p JO 20UBNSSE TO WNIWAL]
655°L 19%8°61 SLI'ST 1L6°F1 606°St SE6°69 056°0¢ S01°'9 000°0€ - panssi spuogy
(SASN) SADUNOS ONIDNVNIA Y¥AHLO

v 66T (€oL'1)  (£09°Z7) (01%°) (LoS’61) {00s°s1) (908°¢D) (£06°65) (z8<?) sompuadxae
{12pun) 1940 SANUIADI JO SSIIXF
TLI9%66 698°T01  ZILBOT  R96GEN 69€°611 109°GE1 LTI 16T°HST 06.°991 S66ET sazmipuadxa [ejo],

£Z7Z°1 SIET 8LS°1 00FT 081°C S06°¢ 6ERY STSh S9Z°p {8€°F SOBIRYD [BOSI] PUB 1S2I2IU]

0sL'e 61EF §59° 6¥6°TT w56 899°6 [L9°11 SFT91 69T°LT SI+°8 [edounig
“uo_?hom uLuQ
0S1°91 6¥F91 S1°81 L68°0T 86€TT 016°Z¢ SLE'TE L60'EY 88L°LY 12842 Aening rende)
L66°LE 01E0p 08L°TY 9F8Sh 08L°Eh 6L0°9F C16°ch SOL G 600°€Y 8£9°8F Ayares a1qn,g
TLLT 10¥°C 6£7°C £08°C 026°C £96°C 768°¢ 99T 0z1y 966°1 201338 J1[qng
£98°C1 OveLl 18+°L1 £60°81 LET'8T TLS81 ¥€9°2C L0681 Ly1Ll 997°8T S04 A1Iqng
9LV 865t (TASE 0£6'F $99% L9T'S 666°S 6¥T°S £67°S 6£7°9 UOLJBIIDI 79 SHIed
600°9 Sot't LS6F 68y ov6T 1+1°¢ £68°¢ £0S°¢ 8LEE £29°¢ I[ronuod Ar)
T’ 19¢°¢ L8EE 6LE'E 91¥°E ¥S¥'e 6TH'E LEY'E 8TS°E p6E‘e Buruuel
9£0°8 1L5°8 £96°L 8IT°01 1£¥°6 THL6 72001 189°01 £6601 S10°01 JUSWILISAOT [RISUDL)
SHANLIANAIXA
9NL66 PZIE0T  LP690L  SOE°ElLl 656111 v60GL1 LT9°6T1 S8 0ET LS1°LTE CL60EL SaNUaA21 [R1O],
900°1 18€C [ZA ! vTr'e 01T 9L 7897 99%°¢ LELT vee's [0
8¢ 9T - - - - - - - - SNUIAII JUSWISSISSE [e10adg
638¢ LIS ¥61 §9¢ 8LT 12313 8LT 0€E°1 868°T $5TT STUTUIES JUDWISIAL]
06¥°T PSST TSET 19+'C 9T STr'T 00€°C 99€°C €LPl peL 1 SIIMIIJ0J PUB SIUL]
SLLLI 89701 #89°01 816°01 811 996°01 LTFO1 LS9 6911 IOl 1 $291A13S 10} SoFreY)
8096 0LE°6 L£98 €LL8 €55 96¢€°9 85¢°g 105°01 ovL'S 7799 SONUIAST [EIUSWILIIAOT I
980°1 061°1 zITT 9ZH'1 £6€°1 66€°1 91°1 0171 621°1 W'l spueiad 79 S95UA0TY
FICEL § BI89L § +HPT8 § 86698 § H$0T68 § TIST6 $ OSKFO0T § 190°001T § OSIOL § T1E€LP01 § SIXR],
SHNNAATH

1102 zZz €102 ¥L0Z G0z 9102 2102 810Z 6102 0202

(spuesnoy] ul stejjoq)

(fununoooe jo siseq jeniooe palipouw)

SYVIA TVISId NI1 1SV

SANN4 TVLINIWNYIAOO 40 SADNV1IVE ANNLS NI SIONVYHD

VINOHVIMO ‘NVINMON 40 ALID IHL



%0¢°¢

%06°¢

%06t

%08

44

"$102[0xd premioJ UBWION 10J 9%,G'() AQ PISBOIOUI XB) SI[es 9 (7 ‘| Arenuef Suruuioq 90N

%06°¢

%00t

%00t

%00v

%00t

%SV

L9Y'9S § 88165 § TT6GS § THITO $ 696C9 § F680L $ LLSEL S SE0PL § TS6FL § 9TTSL §

£r0°L
£89°1
£9%°C
£86°C
9¢I°e
9T¢
vog'e
1¥'e
969°C
€L6°8

SISWL $ L69WT $ $LIOT §

(1114

L9T°L
310°T
08T
0S0°¢
oLt'c
96I°¢
8E5°¢
$86°¢
LLT'9
08¢

rA 1114

LLYS
L8Y'T
IZ3a
£THT
0EF°T
£96°1
£6€°C
80L°T
100°L1
TLEol

1 1174

¥8Y°9
17€°€
TTET
1€6°¢
850y
991°¢
(4153
ThL'Y
668°L
960°01

166%1 § LYO'ST § 8L9°CT § 69891 § +TELI § PISLT $ 64581 $

ri0c

LTE9
o'y
6v€T
6SE
6V8°E
LOS'E
98¢°¢
L8V
8158
80L°01

102

LLE'L
ToC°Y
62H'T
(4N
790y
08b°€
09b°€
816°S
090°6
99¢°1 1

a10e

1608
LS9V
£86°C
LPS'E
8SILY
SRLE
$98°¢
TS
£90°6
110°Z1

L1102

YOT'L
1LS%p
£0S°T
LTSC
610%
POL'E
Wy
£EI’s
£5T°6
856°T1

8102

1L
655t
3T
LEF'S
6¥8'¢
899°¢
986°¢
LST'S
ors's
681°¢1

6102

870°L
SS8Y
§07°T
v16°C
£F8’c
01¥°¢
078t
0509
$98°6
LS9TL

020¢

UOISSTRIWO,) XB ], BWOURP[() :SIIINOS

o7eI XB] SRS 10a1Ip A1)

[Bl0L

SJolIno IY10 [[V
Sp003 3[qeINp-opel] eSO
SUOTIEDIUNUIIO))

$2101s A10sS390® pue [aeddy
$I01S POO,{

soouerdde pue s3uryswing swoy
$901A10S AJRJUES 29 SBS 111095
S[00] ULR] pue S[eLLRW SuIp[ing
[IBJR1 STOSUR]ISIA
SluaMIysIgr1s? FurjuLp pue Suneq
ASIPUBYIIW [BISUID)

(spuesnoy] ui siejjoq)
SHUVIA TvISId NIL LSV

AHO931V3 A8 S3TVS F1gVvXVL

VINOHVIMO ‘NYIWHON 40 ALIO 3HL



THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

City State

Fiscal Direct of Cleveland
Year Rate Oklahoma County
2020 4.125 % 45 % 0.125 %
2019 4.000 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2018 4.000 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2017 4.000 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2016 4.000 % 45 % 0.250 %
2015 3.500 % 45 % 0.250 %
2014 3.500 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2013 3.500 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2012 3.500 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2011 3.500 % 4.5 % 0.250 %
2010 3.500 % 4.5 % 0.250 %

Source: Oklahoma Tax Commission

Note: Voters approved a .125% City sales tax for transit operations effective April 1, 2020. Voters approved a 0.5%
City sales tax for Norman Forward quality of life projects effective January 1, 2016, Voters approved a
temporary .5% City public safety sales tax effective October 1, 2008 and ending September 30, 2015. On April
1, 2014, the citizens approved permanent extension of the public safety sales tax.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

Percentage of

Estimated
General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value' of Per

Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property Capita®
2011 $ 28495 % 3,669 $ 24,826 321% 222.86
2012 43,140 4,817 38,323 4.85% 338.32
2013 58,790 9,121 49,669 6.13% 429,80
2014 49,657 8,967 40,690 4.81% 344.26
2015 64,196 8,847 55,349 6.34% 468.90
2016 71,419 6,552 64,867 6.97% 539.28
2017 63,101 8,638 54,463 5.48% 43221
2018 51,788 5,769 46,019 4,49% 362.99
2019 71,034 2,674 68,360 6.58% 553.65
2020 67,812 7,201 60,611 5.65% 48535

Note: Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
' See the Schedule of Legal Debt Margin Information on page 128 for property value data.

2 Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 130,
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30,2020
(dollars in thousands)

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Debt repaid with property taxes:

Subtotal, overlapping debt

City of Norman direct debt

County

Norman Public Schools
McLoud Public Schools
Robin Hill Public Schools
Noble Public Schools
Mid Del Public Schools
Little Axe Public Schools
Moore Public Schools

Total direct and overlapping debt

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages and debt outstanding provided by the

Cleveland County Assessor.

Debt

Estimated

Estimated
Share of

Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable’

$ -
106,740

720

215

5,100

52,985

995

112,300

279,055

0.00%
94.29%
0.03%
0.10%
0.65%
0.02%
0.19%
3.14%

Debt

100,645
0

0

33

11

2

3,526

104,217

154,487

258,704

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of
the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne by the residents and business of the City of Norman. This process

recognizes that, when considering the City’s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt

burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not
imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each
overlapping government.

! The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the county’s taxable assessed value
that is within the City’s boundaries and dividing it by the county’s total taxable assessed value.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal
Income
Fiscal (billions Per Capita Median School Unemployment
year Population'  of dollars)®  Income? Age?  Enrollment® Rate*
2011 111,398 $8.7 24,586 30.4 14,644 5.00%
2012 113,273 9.1 26,058 29.6 15,022 4.40%
2013 115,562 9.6 27,343 29.7 15,510 5.00%
2014 118,197 10.4 26,267 29.9 15,739 4.20%
2015 118,040 10.6 27,749 30.2 15,745 3.80%
2016 120,284 112 28,273 30.1 15,944 4,20%
2017 122,180 11.9 28,458 30.3 16,363 4.20%
2018 122,843 11.8 30,168 30.3 16,162 3.50%
2019 123,471 12,1 28.977 30.1 16,289 3.20%
2020 124,880 12.7 30,449 304 14,419 6.70%

Data Sources

! Years 2010 estimated by the City of Norman Planning Department. Years 2011- 19 obtained from census
data

2U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2010-2019 estimated

3 Norman Public Schools

*+U.S. Department of Labor

5 Personal income estimated except for 2010 Census data
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2020 2011
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
The University of Oklahoma 11,649 1 18.80% 11,732 1 22,73%
Norman Regional Hospital 3,147 2 5.08% 2,751 2 5.33%
Norman Public Schools 1,972 3 3.18% 1,842 3 3.57%
York International/Johnson Controls 1,225 4 1.98% 1,118 4 2.17%
Walmart 1,170 5 1.89%
City of Norman 887 6 1.43% 830 5 1.61%
Department of Mental Health & Substance Abuse 500 7 0.81% 584 6 1.13%
Hitachi 400 8 0.65%
NOAA National Severe Storm Laboratory 400 9 0.65% 500 8 0.97%
Target 380 10 0.61%
USPS National Center for Employee Development 558 7 1.08%
Oklahoma Veteran's Center 361 10 0.70%
ClientLogic/Sitel - - 410 9 0.79%
Total 21,730 35.08% 20,686 40.08%

Source: Various employers within the City of Norman and the Bureau of Labor and Statistics.

- 131 -



THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

FUNCTION
General government 62 64 60 64 61 59 40 38 36 36
Planning 34 38 36 38 37 36 37 36 36 37
City controller 34 32 30 30 29 28 35 37 38 38
Parks & recreation 52 55 59 58 53 52 47 52 54 53
Public works 118 115 116 119 112 112 110 108 106 104
Public safety

Police 260 259 262 259 245 235 231 240 229 237

Fire 169 171 171 173 163 162 163 157 142 137
Westwood 34 37 18 16 17 17 18 18 19 18
Water 49 49 48 50 49 47 49 49 49 48
Wastewater 44 45 45 46 43 43 42 42 40 41
Sanitation 59 59 58 60 58 55 58 57 55 56
Total 915 924 903 913 867 846 830 834 804 805

Source: City Payroll Office

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per year (including vacation and sick leave). Full-
time equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total labor hours by 2,080,
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal year
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FUNCTION
Public safety
Police
Stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 l 1
Patrol units 122 115 117 116 117 116 119 120 118 108
Fire stations 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 8
Sanitation
Collection trucks 54 44 43 40 41 45 41 41 41 4]
Highways and streets
Streets (miles) 773 773 768 765 763 783 753 752 749 745
Streetlights 6,626 6,609 6,605 6,565 6,478 6,339 6,296 6,191 6,115 5,585
Traffic signals 257 256 256 256 250 246 241 189 185 176
Parks and recreation
Acreage 1,158 1,158 1,158 1,158 1,158 1,158 1,156 1,150 1,150 1,142
Playgrounds 55 54 53 53 52 52 52 52 52 51
Swimming pools 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5
Tennis courts 26 26 24 24 24 24 22 22 22 22
Community centers 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Golf courses 1 1 1 1 1 l 1 1 1 1
Disc gold cources 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Skateparks/Skate spots 4 3 l 1 1 1 1 1 t 1
Bike parks 1 1 - - - - - - - -
Fishing lakes 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 6
Water
Water mains (miles) 619 606 600 600 597 593 576 566 562 547
Fire hydrants 6,351 6,071 5,986 5,988 5,921 5,860 5,618 5,498 5,392 5,337
Water towers 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4
Maximum daily capacity
(thousands of gallons) 23,500 23,300 23,300 23,300 23,500 23,500 23,500 22,600 22,600 20,300
Wastewater
Sanitary sewers (miles) 516 515 508 511 500 494 491 485 479 476
Manholes 12,147 12,097 11,927 11,928 11,656 11,625 11,530 11,387 11,228 11,154
Maximum daily treatment capacity
(thousands of gallons) 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 24,000 24,000

Sources: Various city departments.
Note: No capital asset indicators are available for the general government function.
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